
` 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTICE OF AND AGENDA FOR A WORKSHOP AND REGULAR MEETING  

TO BE HELD BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DATE:  MONDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2014 
TIME:  5:30 PM 
PLACE:  PHARR CITY HALL 
  2nd FLOOR, CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS  
  118 SOUTH CAGE BOULEVARD 
  PHARR, TEXAS 78577 

 
PRESIDING: RANCE G. SWEETEN, CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
INVOCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER FOR WORKSHOP 
 

1. Review of proposed Fiscal Year 2015 Operating and Capital Budget. 
2. Review of monthly Financial Report. 
3. Review of Project Development Agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for the State Highway 365 

Project. 
4. Interview of short list for Auditing Services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

 
ADJOURMENT OF WORKSHOP 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR REGULAR MEETING 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

1. REPORTS 
 
A. Report on Program Manager Activity for SH 365 and IBTC – Louis Jones, Dannenbaum Engineering 
B. Report on State Legislative changes - Rene Ramirez, Pathfinders 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing Body and will be 
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items; however, if discussion is desired, that item(s) will 
be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. The Governing Body may also elect to go into 
Executive Session on any item on this agenda, whether or not such item(s) are posted as an Executive Session Item, at any 
time during the meeting when authorized by provisions of the Open Public Meeting Act.) 
 
A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting held November 20, 2014. 
B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from November 12, 2014 to December 5, 2014. 
C. Approval of Financial Report for November 2014. 
D. Resolution 2014-113 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 13 with Dannenbaum 

Engineering for a No-cost time extension for the Regional Toll Analysis for State Highway 365 and International Bridge 
Trade Corridor Projects. 

E. Resolution 2014-114 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 16 with Dannenbaum 
Engineering for a No-cost time extension for offsite Hydrology & Hydraulics Study for State Highway 365 and 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects. 

F. Resolution 2014-115 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 18 with Dannenbaum 
Engineering for a No-cost time extension for non-destructive utility locations for the International Bridge Trade 
Corridor Project. 

G. Resolution 2014-116 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 with R. Gutierrez 
Engineering to provide revised parcel plats and descriptions for ETT/Cross Valley Transmission Line Project as part of 
the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. 

H. Resolution 2014-117 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Professional Service Agreement with R. Gutierrez 
Engineering to increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1. 

I. Resolution 2014-118 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 with Quintanilla, Headley 
& Associates to provide revised parcel plats and descriptions for ETT/Cross Valley Transmission Line Project as part of 
the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project.. 



` 

J. Resolution 2014-119 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Professional Service Agreement with Quintanilla, 
Headley & Associates to increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization 
Number 1. 

K. Resolution 2014-120 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 with Melden & Hunt to 
provide revised parcel plats and descriptions for ETT/Cross Valley Transmission Line Project as part of the International 
Bridge Trade Corridor Project. 

L. Resolution 2014-121 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to Professional Service Agreement with Melden & Hunt to 
increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1. 
 

3. REGULAR AGENDA  
 
A. Resolution 2014-111 – Adoption of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Fiscal Year 2015 Operating and Capital 

Budget. 
B. Resolution 2014-112 – Approval of ranking for Auditing Services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority and 

authorization for staff to negotiate fees and execute an engagement letter. 
  

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
A. Report on upcoming Texas Transportation Forum to be held January 14-16, 2015, in Austin, Texas. 

 
5. TABLED ITEMS 

 
A. Resolution 2014-49 – Approval of Work Authorization Number 4 to Professional Service Agreement with L&G 

Engineering to provide final plans, specifications and estimates for the State Highway 365 Project from FM 396 
(Anzalduas Highway) to FM 1016 (Conway Avenue). 

B. Resolution 2014-70 – Approval of Interlocal Agreement with the City of Mission for participation with a waterline 
adjustment in conflict with the State Highway 365 Project Segment 4 from FM 396 to FM 1016. 
 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY), 
SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074 (PERSONNEL MATTERS)  
 
A. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the deliberation of real property for the State Highway 

365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects (Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 
B. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Early Right of Way Acquisition and environmental 

clearance process for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects (Section 551.071 T.G.C).  
C. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the use of Eminent Domain to acquire property required 

to complete the project alignments of the State Highway 365 and the International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects 
(Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

D. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the proposed South Texas Class I Rail Project (Section 
551.071 T.G.C.). 

E. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to an Interlocal Agreement with the Donna Irrigation 
District for the acquisition of real property and construction of improvements for the International Bridge Trade 
Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

F. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to a Project Development Agreement with the Texas 
Department of Transportation for the State Highway 365 Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
 

ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

I, the Undersigned Authority, do hereby certify that the attached agenda of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority Board of Directors is a true and correct copy and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Web Page (www.hcrma.net) and the bulletin board in the Hidalgo County 
Court House (100 North Closner, Edinburg, Texas 78539), a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public 
at all times, and said Notice was posted on the 10th  day of December 2014 at 12:00 pm and will remain so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting in accordance with Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code. 

                                   Flor E. Koll 
         Program Administrator 
 
Note:  If you require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Flor E. Koll at 
956-402-4762 at least 24 hours before the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.hcrma.net/


` 

 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY 
 

Public Comment Policy: “At the beginning of each HCRMA meeting, the HCRMA will allow for an open public 
forum/comment period. This comment period shall not exceed one-half (1/2) hour in length and each speaker will be 
allowed a maximum of three (3) minutes to speak. All individuals desiring to address the HCRMA must be signed up to 
do so, prior to the open comment period. The purpose of this comment period is to provide the public an opportunity to 
address issues or topics that are under the jurisdiction of the HCRMA. For issues or topics which are not otherwise part 
of the posted agenda for the meeting, HCRMA members may direct staff to investigate the issue or topic further. No 
action or discussion shall be taken on issues or topics which are not part of the posted agenda for the meeting. 
Members of the public may be recognized on posted agenda items deemed appropriate by the Chairman as these items 
are considered, and the same time limitations (3 minutes) applies.” 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 1 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     1                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 1 – REVIEW OF PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2015 

OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET.         
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Review of proposed Fiscal Year 2015 Operating and Capital Budget for the Hidalgo County  

Regional Mobility Authority.           
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Review only.           
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

I 
 

 

 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
November 26, 2014 
 
To:    Rance Sweeten, Chairman 
 
From:    Jerry Dale, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Subject:  Adopt Budget for Year 2015 
 
Background 
As provided by law and good business practice, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority budget as 
recommended  for  calendar  year  2015  is  respectfully  submitted  to  the  Board  of  Directors  for 
consideration, approval and adoption.    It consists of  three distinct sections  (fund  types)—namely,  the 
General Fund, the Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds.  In addition to the budget for 2015 
a plan is presented for the succeeding five (5) years for the purpose of providing a longer‐view perspective 
and some direction of the future path from financing activities of the project, to its design/construction 
activities—all leading up to the commencement of toll operations.  The budget and plan was developed 
consistent with  the  Strategic  Plan  dated  September  2014  (with  the  exception  of  $19.6M  in  capital 
expenditures  for  IBTC  being moved  from  2014  to  2015).  This  Plan was  developed  by  Dannenbaum 
Engineering Corporation, which in turn integrated the Investment Grade T&R Study performed by C&M 
Associates, Inc. and the Financing Plan developed by First Southwest Company.  As important as the 5‐
year plan is, our focus today is on the 2015 budget. 
 
Overview of the Budget and Plan 
Over the next two years, the financing activities of the HCRMA will be extensive.  The plan includes issuing 
five  (5)  separate  series of bonds—three  (3) of which will be  TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds; with  the 
remaining  two  (2),  Toll  Revenue  Bonds.    In  addition,  borrowing  funds  under  a  loan with  the  State 
Infrastructure Bank is anticipated.  Four (4) of the series of bonds are planned to be issued in 2015 with 
the  remaining  series,  Toll  Revenue  Bond  Issue  #2,  and  the  SIB  loan  occurring  in  2016.  For  budget 
presentation purposes,  the  two  (2) TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds  financing SH 365 Segments 1‐3 and 
Segment 4, are present under one fund for both the Debt Service Funds as well as the Bond Construction 
Funds.  These financing activities will generate $556M in bond/loan gross proceeds.  An additional $5.6M 
has been budgeted for a state grant.  Supplemented by an additional $40.3 of the remaining proceeds of 
the Vehicle Registration Fee Bonds Series 2013, which will be spent from August 2013 going forward, total 



 

II 
 

gross bond/loan proceeds amount to $601.9M.  Net of issuing cost, bond reserve funds (when required) 
and capitalized interest—all of which will be discussed below, net bond/loan proceeds are expected to 
amount to $438.4M.  Including the $5.6M state grant and the $40.3M remaining from Series 2013 Bonds, 
$484.3M will be available to cover the cost of both SH 365 (Segments 1‐3 and 4) and IBTC in the amounts 
of $290.6M and $193.7M, respectively. 
 
Over the next 6 years, the General Fund, which includes the general and operating expenses, will continue 
to  grow  as  the  organization  becomes  larger  and more  complex—moving  from  planning  and  design 
activities to final plans, construction and operations.  It is expected to grow from $1.1M in 2015 to $1.6M 
in 2020—most of which is personnel related. 
 
Working capital has been planned to remain stable at $750K—in the range of 180days or more.  During 
all of the years presented the bond coverage ratio of the VRF 2013 issue is shown at 1.43X to 1.58X. First 
Southwest Company has computed it for the two Toll Revenue Bonds Issues at 1.20X. 
 
The budget for 2015 as presented reflects total spending at $146M—with $1.1 for operations, $129M for 
capital expenditures and $15.5M for debt service. 
 
General Fund – Within the General Fund, VRFs were estimated to increase by 2% over the estimate for 
2014.  Spending is recommended to increase $95.9K due primarily to the following reasons: 
 

 a 2 ½% COLA has been provided 
 adjustment to pay rate of Executive Director 
 increase in audit cost 

 
No new employee positions have been provided for in the budget for 2015. 
 
The excess revenues from VRFs, after administrative expenses, which are expected to amount to $1.6M 
have been  transferred  to a new  capital project  fund,  leaving a  reasonable amount of working  capital 
intact, which has been determined to be $750K. 
 
At the end of the year, we estimate that working capital will amount to $750K and the bond coverage 
ratio will be 1.43X. 
 
Debt Service Funds 
Consistent with the Financing Plan developed by First Southwest Company, this budget/plan reports that 
of the $556M in gross debt proceeds $118M will be spent on financing costs‐‐$5M in bond issue costs, 
$17M  providing  bond  reserve  funds  for  the  Toll  Revenue  Bond  Issues with  the  remaining  $96M  for 
capitalized interest—leaving $438M to spend for project costs. 
 
Rather than providing cash bond reserves with the high cost associated with that method, In a negative 
arbitrage environment, every attempt will be made to purchase surety  insurance  if  it provides a short 
term payback. 



 

III 
 

The large amount of capitalized interest required is a consequence of public financing in which funding is 
upfront.    The  good  news  is  that  of  the  $96  in  capitalized  interest,  $67M  is  related  to  TxDOT 
Reimbursement Bonds—all of which will be ultimately be paid by the State.  The bad news is that $29M 
is related to Toll Revenue Bonds and will be repaid by HCRMA. And, even though the State will ultimately 
pay this cost related to the TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds, that amount could have otherwise been used 
for part of  the next phase of  the  Loop Project.   Every effort will be made  to mitigate  the amount of 
capitalized interest by considering more frequent bond issues at smaller amounts, utilizing lines of credit 
to draw as needed and taken out though refunding, etc.  Perhaps First Southwest Company could perform 
a sensitivity anaylsis , taking into account the potential for rising interest rates, which could be a risk. 
 
Capital Project Funds 
The following amounts aggregating $36M have been identified as additional sources not included in the 
Strategic Plan, remaining in fund balances of the following funds: 
 
Funded by Excess Vehicle Registration Fee Revenues from General Fund – $8.6M. 
 
Funded by Cities—Several cities, directly affected by  IBTC, has  committed  to an aggregate amount of 
$105K per year, which as shown is budgeted to pay for ROW.  At the end of 2020, fund balance is reported 
at $630K. 
 
Funded by Grants—The Cat 10 grant amounting to $1.3M is reported at 2014 and remaining at 2020.  In 
addition is the $25M grant that Representative Martinez assisted with obtaining. 
  
SIB Loan Construction Fund—$500K remains in fund balance in 2018—continuing through 2020. 
 
We  recommend  that  the  Board  consider  leaving  these  funds  in  place  at  the moment  and make  a 
determination at a later date. 
 
We believe that this budget realistically provides the adequate and necessary funding to accomplish this 
part of the strategic plan in a manner that is both effective and efficient.  We look forward to presenting 
this budget to you and welcome any questions, comments and recommendations to improve it. 
 
Goal 
The goal of this  item  is to meet the  legal requirement as well as provide prudent financial/operational 
management to the affairs of the HCRMA. 
 
Options 
The Board, at its discretion, may wish to modify any part of this recommended budget. 
 
Recommendation 
Based upon a review by this Office, it is recommended that the 2015 Budget be approved and adopted as 
presented. 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2014-111 

 
 

ADOPTION OF HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY  
FISCAL YEAR 2015 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 

 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15TH   day of December, 2014 by the Board of Director of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
  

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 

October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is required to report to the Texas Department of 

Transportation the annual operating and capital budget adopted pursuant to the Texas 
Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility Authority 
Reports and Audits), as amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s fiscal year commences on January 1, 2015 and ends on 

December 31, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority has reviewed the proposed Fiscal Year 2015 Budget for the 

necessary operating and capital expenses;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board adopts the Fiscal Year 2015 Operating and Capital Budget, hereto 

attached as Exhibit A. 
 

Section 3. The Board of Directors authorize the Executive Director to manage and 
administer the Fiscal Year 2015 Operating and Capital Budget. 

 
***** 

 
 



 
 
Passed and Approved as to be effective immediately this 15th day of December 2014, at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at which a 
quorum was present and which was held in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
       
Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
             

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY  
FISCAL YEAR 2015  

OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 



Beginning Projected Bond Transfers Transfers
Net Position/Balance Revenues Proceeds In Out

General Fund
General Fund 750,000$                     5,691,298$                 361,587,713$              -$                                (366,215,735)$             

Total General Fund 750,000$                     5,691,298$                 361,587,713$              -$                                (366,215,735)$            

Debt Service Funds
  Senior Lein Vehicle Registration Fee Series 2013
      Revenue and Refunding Bonds 331,326$                     -$                                3,975,829$                 -$                                
  TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds 2015 (SH 365 Seg 1-3 & 4) -                                  -                                  -                                  23,507,604                 -                                  
  TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds 2015 (IBTC) -                                  -                                  -                                  19,792,875                 -                                  
  Toll Revenue Bonds #1 Series 2015 -                                  -                                  -                                  23,612,572                 -                                  

Tota Debt Service Funds 331,326$                     -$                                -$                                70,888,880$               -$                                

Bond Reserve Fund(s)
  Toll Revenue Bonds #1 Series 2015 -$                                -$                                -$                                7,975,541$                 -$                                

Total Bond Reserve Fund(s) -$                                -$                                -$                                7,975,541$                 -$                                

Capital Projects Funds
 Capital Projects Fund - Funded by VRFs 3,212,013$                  -$                                -$                                652,191$                    -$                                
 Capital Projects Fund - Funded by Cities -                                  105,000                      -                                  -                                  -                                  
 Capital Projects Fund - Funded by State Grants 1,091,547                    5,600,000                   -                                  -                                  -                                  
 Capital Projects Fund - Bond Construction Fund 2013 13,651,000                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  
 Capital Projects Funds--BONDS
    TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds 2015 (SH 365 Seg 1-3 & 4) -                                  -                                  -                                  145,253,196               -                                  
    TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds 2015 (IBTC) -                                  -                                  -                                  91,504,496                 -                                  
    Toll Revenue Bonds #1 Series 2015 -                                  49,941,429                 -                                  

Total Capital Project Funds 17,954,560                  5,705,000                   -                                  287,351,312               -                                  

TOTALS 19,035,886$                11,396,298$               361,587,713$              366,215,733$             (366,215,735)$            

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
2014-2015 Combined Budget Summary

All Funds

Combined Fund Balance Summary



Capital Debt Total Revenue Over/Under Other Items Ending
Operations Outlay Service Appropriations Expenses Working Capital Net Position/Balance

1,063,276$                   -$                                 -$                                 1,063,276$                   -$                                 -$                                 750,000$                      

1,063,276$                   -$                                 -$                                 1,063,276$                   -$                                 -$                                 750,000$                      

-$                                 -$                                 3,975,963$                   3,975,963$                   (134)$                           -$                                 331,192$                      
-                                   -                                   4,613,396                     4,613,396                     18,894,208                   -                                   18,894,208                   
-                                   -                                   4,632,375                     4,632,375                     15,160,500                   -                                   15,160,500                   
-                                   -                                   2,264,219                     2,264,219                     21,348,353                   -                                   21,348,353                   

-$                                 -$                                 15,485,953$                 15,485,953$                 55,402,927$                 -$                                 55,734,253$                 

-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 7,975,541$                   -$                                 7,975,541$                   

-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 7,975,541$                   -$                                 7,975,541$                   

-$                                 3,864,204$                   -$                                 3,864,204$                   (3,212,013)$                  -$                                 -$                                 
-                                   105,000                        -                                   105,000                        -                                   -                                   -                                   
-                                   5,600,000                     -                                   5,600,000                     -                                   -                                   1,091,547                     
-                                   11,933,000                   -                                   11,933,000                   (11,933,000)                  -                                   1,718,000                     

-                                   45,704,000                   -                                   45,704,000                   99,549,196                   -                                   99,549,196                   
-                                   41,841,000                   -                                   41,841,000                   49,663,496                   -                                   49,663,496                   
-                                   20,738,000                   -                                   20,738,000                   29,203,429                   -                                   29,203,429                   

-                                   129,785,204                 -                                   129,785,204                 163,271,108                 -                                   181,225,668                 

1,063,276$                   129,785,204$               15,485,953$                 146,334,433$               226,649,576$               -$                                 245,685,462$               

Combined Fund Balance Summary



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
  2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Working Capital ‐$                      1,733,711$     3,168,493$      750,000$           750,001$               750,000$              750,000$              750,000$              750,000$             

Revenues
Vehicle Registration Fees 5,440,240        5,579,704      5,579,704       5,691,298         5,805,124           5,921,227           6,039,651           6,160,444           6,283,653          
Interest Income 12                     ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
Tolls ‐ SH 365 ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             1,475,000           4,090,000           5,450,000          
Tolls ‐ IBTC ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             770,000               2,100,000           1,750,000          

  Total Revenues 5,440,252        5,579,704      5,579,704       5,691,298         5,805,124           5,921,227           8,284,651           12,350,444         13,483,653        

Expenditures
Administration
  Personnel Services 258,070            507,478          488,063           553,736            690,385               1,011,847           1,045,810           1,117,963           1,145,328          
  Supplies 5,376                7,500              5,000               10,000               10,000                  12,500                 12,500                 15,000                 15,000                
  Other Services and Charges 199,880            275,400          304,222           322,540            329,290               346,290               350,790               367,290               367,290              
  Maintenance ‐                        2,000              2,000               2,000                 2,000                     2,000                    2,000                    2,000                    2,000                   
  Capital Outlay ‐                        175,000          5,000               175,000            33,200                  36,400                 30,000                 39,000                 30,000                
  Total Administration Expenditures 463,326            967,378          804,285           1,063,276         1,064,875           1,409,037           1,441,100           1,541,253           1,559,618          

Operatons
SH 365 ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             655,841               1,499,330           1,705,419          
IBTC ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             334,394               733,302               805,207              
Toll Operations Expense‐‐Net ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             990,235               2,232,632           2,510,626          

  Total Expenditures 463,326            967,378          804,285           1,063,276         1,064,875           1,409,037           2,431,335           3,773,885           4,070,244          

Net Increase (Decrease) Before Other
  Financing Sources (Uses) 4,976,926        4,612,326      4,775,419       4,628,022         4,740,249           4,512,190           5,853,316           8,576,559           9,413,409          

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
VRF Issue Note 1 Note 2

Gross  Bond Proceeds @ Par plus Prem 63,899,934      ‐                       ‐                        364,965,655    191,013,396       ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
(Cost of Issuance) (1,161,714)       ‐                       ‐                        (3,377,942)        (1,409,738)          ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
(Underwriter Expenses) incl ‐                       ‐                        incl ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
(Refund LOC (PCB/FNB) (10,786,349)    ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
  Net Proceeds from VRF 13 Bonds 51,951,871      ‐                       ‐                        361,587,713    189,603,658       ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
General Fund Budget Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

1



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
  2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
General Fund Budget Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

Transfers‐In (Out)
 Debt Service Fund‐FNB LOC 150,000            ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Debt Service Fund ‐ FNB LOC (1,780,165)       ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Debt Service Fund ‐ VRF 2013 Bonds (325,248)          (3,981,899)     (3,981,899)      (3,975,829)        (3,974,411)          (3,976,183)          (3,976,753)          (3,974,782)          (3,973,313)         
 Debt Service Fund ‐ TxDOT Reimb Bonds ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        (66,913,051)     (28,804,913)        ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Debt Service Fund ‐ SIB Loan ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Debt Service Fund ‐ Toll Rev Bonds ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Bond Reserve Fund ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        (7,975,541)        (9,100,321)          ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Capital Projects Fund ‐ VRF 13 Bonds (51,951,871)    ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Capital Projects Fund ‐ TxDOT Reimb Bonds ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        (236,757,694)   ‐                             
 Capital Projects Fund ‐ SIB Loan ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          (99,441,282)        ‐                             ‐                             (3,300,168)          (4,768,124)         
 Capital Projects Fund ‐ Toll Rev Bonds ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        (49,941,429)     (52,257,143)        ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Capital Projects Fund ‐ VRF ‐                        (1,614,138)     (3,212,013)      (652,191)           (765,837)              (536,007)              (1,876,563)          (1,045,675)          (506,651)             
  Capital Projects Fund ‐ Replacement ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             (255,934)              (165,321)             
  Total (Transfers Out) (53,907,284)    (5,596,037)     (7,193,912)      (366,215,735)   (194,343,907)     (4,512,190)          (5,853,316)          (8,576,559)          (9,413,409)         

  Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,955,413)       (5,596,037)     (7,193,912)      (4,628,022)        (4,740,249)          (4,512,190)          (5,853,316)          (8,576,559)          (9,413,409)         

Net Increase (Decrease) After Other
  Financing Sources (Uses) 3,021,513        (983,711)        (2,418,493)      0                         (0)                           (0)                          (0)                          (0)                          0                           

Ending Working Capital 3,168,493$      750,000$         750,000$         750,001$           750,000$               750,000$              750,000$              750,000$              750,000$             

Operating Expenditures per Day 1,269$              2,650$             2,204$              2,913$                2,917$                   3,860$                  3,948$                  4,223$                  4,273$                 

No. of Days of Operating Expenditures
  in Working Capital 2,496                283                  340                   257                    257                        194                       190                       178                       176                      

Bond Coverage Ratio
  VRF Series 2013 Bonds 1.40                 X 1.40                  X 1.43                   X 1.46                       X 1.49                      X 1.52                      X 1.55                      X 1.58                     

Working Capital Calc
Current Assets per Audited F/S 4,124,738$     
Current Liabilities per Audited F/S (1,281,493)      
Working Capital ‐‐ Unadjusted 2,843,245       
Plus:  Debt Service Fund per Audited F/s 325,248           
Working Capital ‐‐ As Adjusted 3,168,493$     

Note 1 ‐ Includes TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds for SH 365 and IBTC and Toll Revenue Bond #1
Note 2 ‐ Includes SIB Loan and Toll Revenue Bond #2

2



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Exempt
  Executive Director ‐$                      174,250$    204,250$   200,000$       205,000$        210,125$       215,378$       220,763$       226,282$       
  ROW Acquisition Coordinator ‐ Full Time ‐                        70,000       52,500      71,750           73,544             75,382           77,267           79,199           81,179           
  Contract Compliance/Auditor ‐ Full‐Time ‐                        95,000       71,250      97,375           99,809             102,305        104,862        107,484        110,171        
  Construction Maintenance Engineer ‐ FT ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      95,000             97,375           99,809           102,305        104,862        
  Deputy Executive Director ‐ Full Time ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       150,000        153,750        157,594        161,534        
  Design/Development Engineer ‐ Full Time ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       95,000           97,375           99,809           102,305        
  Total Exempt ‐                        339,250     328,000    369,125        473,353          730,187        748,442        767,153        786,331        

Non‐Exempt
  Program Administrator ‐                        50,188       48,964      50,188           51,443             52,729           54,047           55,398           56,783           
  Secretary ‐ Full‐Time ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                       
  Secretary ‐ Full‐Time ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       ‐                      ‐                      35,000           35,875           
  Total Non‐Exempt ‐                        50,188       48,964      50,188           51,443             52,729           54,047           90,398           92,658           

Part Time ‐ Chief Financial Officer ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                       

Other
Overtime ‐                        2,500         2,500         5,000             5,000               5,000             5,000             7,500             7,500             
Vehicle Allowance ‐                        20,400       17,700      26,400           32,400             38,400           44,400           44,400           44,400           
Phone Allowance ‐                        5,100         6,825         5,100             6,300               8,700             8,700             9,900             9,900             
  Total Other ‐                        28,000       27,025      36,500           43,700             52,100           58,100           61,800           61,800           

Sub‐Total ‐                        417,438     403,989    455,813        568,496          835,016        860,589        919,351        940,790        

Benefits @ 20% ‐                        83,488       80,798      91,163           113,699          167,003        172,118        183,870        188,158        

Administrative Fee ‐                        6,552         3,276         6,760             8,190               9,828             13,104           14,742           16,380           
  Total Compensation 258,070            507,478     488,063    553,736        690,385          1,011,847     1,045,810     1,117,963     1,145,328    

SUPPLIES
Office Supplies 5,376               7,500         5,000         10,000           10,000             12,500           12,500           15,000           15,000           

5,376               7,500         5,000         10,000           10,000             12,500           12,500           15,000           15,000           
OTHER SERVICES & CHARGES
Accounting (Salinas, Allen & Schimit) 10,200             10,200       10,200      10,200           x 10,200             10,200           10,200           10,200           10,200           
Dues & Subscriptions (Publications/Lisc/Prof Orgs 56,140             22,500       19,750      25,000           27,750             30,750           31,250           33,750           33,750           
Insurance ‐ E&O ‐                        640             640            640                x 640                 640                640                640                640                

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
General Fund Expenditure Budget Detail

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

COMPENSATION

3



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
General Fund Expenditure Budget Detail

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

Insurance ‐ Surety 2,115               800             800            800                x 800                 800                800                800                800                
Training 580                  11,500       7,000         16,000           13,000             15,000           17,000           19,000           19,000           
Travel 8,301               15,000       13,000      17,000           19,000             21,000           23,000           25,000           25,000           
Temporary Employees ‐                        7,000         7,000         7,000             x 7,000               7,000             7,000             7,000             7,000             
Printing 3,889               1,200         1,200         1,200             x 1,200               1,200             1,200             1,200             1,200             
Postage/FedEx/Courier Services 1,005               2,000         2,000         2,000             x 2,000               2,000             2,000             2,000             2,000             
Rental ‐ Office 25,606             15,000       12,000      20,000           25,000             25,000           25,000           25,000           25,000           
Rental ‐ Office Equipment ‐                        10,900       6,972         10,900           x 10,900             10,900           10,900           10,900           10,900           
Contractual Adm/IT Services ‐                        4,860         4,860         10,000           x 10,000             10,000           10,000           10,000           10,000           
Contractual Website Services ‐                        1,800         1,800         1,800             x 1,800               1,800             1,800             1,800             1,800             
Consulting 61,549             172,000     217,000    200,000        200,000          210,000        210,000        220,000        220,000        
Other 30,495             ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                       

Legal ‐ Bracewell, Guilliani ‐                        50,000       85,000      50,000           x 50,000             50,000           50,000           50,000           50,000           
Legal ‐ Dan Rios ‐                        50,000       59,000      50,000           x 50,000             50,000           50,000           50,000           50,000           
Chief Financial Officer ‐                        57,000       57,000      60,000           x 60,000             60,000           60,000           60,000           60,000           
Audit ‐                        15,000       16,000      40,000           40,000             50,000           50,000           60,000           60,000           

  Total Other Services & Charges 199,880            275,400     304,222    322,540        329,290          346,290        350,790        367,290        367,290        

MAINTENANCE
Equipment Repair ‐                        2,000         2,000         2,000             2,000               2,000             2,000             2,000             2,000             

‐                        2,000         2,000         2,000             2,000               2,000             2,000             2,000             2,000             

Project Management Software ‐                        170,000     ‐                 170,000        30,000             30,000           30,000           30,000           30,000           
2 ‐ Laptops & Accessories @ $1800 ‐                        3,600         3,600         3,600             1,800               3,600             ‐                      9,000             ‐                       
Desk, Chair & Accessories ‐                        1,400         1,400         1,400             1,400               2,800             ‐                      ‐                      ‐                       

‐                        175,000     5,000         175,000        33,200             36,400           30,000           39,000           30,000           

Total Expenditures 463,326$         967,378$    804,285$   1,063,276$    1,064,875$     1,409,037$    1,441,100$    1,541,253$    1,559,618$   

CAPITAL OUTLAY

4



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$               325,248$   325,248$  331,326$    331,192$     331,340$    331,410$    331,250$    331,119$    

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total Revenues -                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  

Expenditures:

Principal -                 1,135,000  1,135,000 1,085,000   1,105,000    1,140,000   1,175,000   1,220,000   1,255,000   
Interest Expense -                 2,840,821  2,840,821 2,890,963   2,869,263    2,836,113   2,801,913   2,754,913   2,718,313   
Fees -                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Total Debt Service Expenditures (Note 1) -                 3,975,821  3,975,821 3,975,963   3,974,263    3,976,113   3,976,913   3,974,913   3,973,313   

Total Expenditures -                 3,975,821  3,975,821 3,975,963   3,974,263    3,976,113   3,976,913   3,974,913   3,973,313   

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  
  General Fund 325,248     3,981,899  3,981,899 3,975,829   3,974,411    3,976,183   3,976,753   3,974,782   3,973,313   

-                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  
-                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total Other Financing Sources 325,248     3,981,899  3,981,899 3,975,829   3,974,411    3,976,183   3,976,753   3,974,782   3,973,313   

Ending Fund Balance 325,248$   331,326$  331,326$ 331,192$   331,340$     331,410$   331,250$   331,119$   331,119$   

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by Trustee, Wilmington Trust

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund Senior Lein Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue and Refunding Bonds Series 2013 
Fund Balance Summary

Plan

For Fiscal Year Ending December31, 2014 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

5



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                -$                  -$                  18,894,208$ 13,638,458$ 7,740,750$   -$                  -$                  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    20,050,750   20,050,250   
TxDOT Reimbursements -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    20,050,750   20,050,250   

Expenditures:

Principal -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    12,310,000   12,925,000   
Interest Expense -                    -                  -                    4,613,396     5,255,750     5,897,708     7,740,750     7,740,750     7,125,250     
Fees -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total Debt Service Expenditures (Note 1) -                    -                  -                    4,613,396     5,255,750     5,897,708     7,740,750     20,050,750   20,050,250   

Total Expenditures -                    -                  -                    4,613,396     5,255,750     5,897,708     7,740,750     20,050,750   20,050,250   

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  General Fund (From Bond Proceeds for -                    -                  -                    23,507,604   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
    Capitalized Interest) -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                  -                    23,507,604   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           - -$          18,894,208$ 13,638,458$ 7,740,750$  -$         -$         -$         

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by First Southwest Company

Comment:  The interest on the Bonds will be paid with bond proceeds for capitalized interest through 2018--all of which will be repaid by TxDOT reimbursements over a 10-year period ending 2028.

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds  Series 2015 (SH 365 Segments 1-3 and Segment 4)
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

6



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                -$                  -$                  15,160,500$ 10,107,000$ 5,053,500$   -$                  -$                  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    13,088,500   13,091,750   

Total Revenues -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    13,088,500   13,091,750   

Expenditures:

Principal -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    8,035,000     8,440,000     
Interest Expense -                    -                  -                    4,632,375     5,053,500     5,053,500     5,053,500     5,053,500     4,651,750     
Fees -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total Debt Service Expenditures (Note 1) -                    -                  -                    4,632,375     5,053,500     5,053,500     5,053,500     13,088,500   13,091,750   

Total Expenditures -                    -                  -                    4,632,375     5,053,500     5,053,500     5,053,500     13,088,500   13,091,750   

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  General Fund (From Bond Proceeds for -                    -                  -                    19,792,875   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
    Capitalized Interest) -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                  -                    19,792,875   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           - -$          15,160,500$ 10,107,000$ 5,053,500$  -$         -$         -$         

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by First Southwest Company

Comment:  The interest on the Bonds will be paid with bond proceeds for capitalized interest through 2018--all of which will be repaid by TxDOT reimbursements over a 10-year period ending 2028.

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund   TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds Series 2015 (IBTC)
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

7



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                 -$                 

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

Total Revenues -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

Expenditures:

Principal -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
Interest Expense -                    -                  -                    -                    4,127,000     4,298,000     4,476,000     4,662,000    4,719,000    
Fees -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
  Total Debt Service Expenditures -                    -                  -                    -                    4,127,000     4,298,000     4,476,000     4,662,000    4,719,000    

Total Expenditures -                    -                  -                    -                    4,127,000     4,298,000     4,476,000     4,662,000    4,719,000    

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
  General Fund (From Toll Revenues) -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    3,300,168    4,768,124    
  Inc (Dec) to Principal on Bonds -                    -                  -                    -                    4,127,000     4,298,000     4,476,000     1,361,832    (49,124)        
    (Note 2) -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                  -                    -                    4,127,000     4,298,000     4,476,000     4,662,000    4,719,000    

Ending Fund Balance -$           - -$          -$         -$          -$         -$         -$        -$        

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by First Southwest Company

Comment:  Interest expense from 2016 through 2018 will be accreted in whole to the outstanding principal of the loan.  In 2019 toll revenues will mitigate the amount needed and in 2020 provide
  for all of the accrued interest for that year as well as reduce the principal by $49,124.

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund  SIB Loan
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

8



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                -$                  -$                  21,348,353$ 17,466,834$ 13,585,315$ 9,703,796$   5,822,277$   

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

Total Revenues -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

Expenditures:

Principal -                    -                  -                    2,264,219     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519    3,881,519    
Interest Expense -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
Fees -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
  Total Debt Service Expenditures -                    -                  -                    2,264,219     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519    3,881,519    

Total Expenditures -                    -                  -                    2,264,219     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519    3,881,519    

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
  General Fund (From Bond Proceeds for -                    -                  -                    23,612,572   -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
    Capitalized Interest) -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

-                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                  -                    23,612,572   -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

Ending Fund Balance -$           - -$          21,348,353$ 17,466,834$ 13,585,315$ 9,703,796$  5,822,277$  1,940,758$  

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by First Southwest Company

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund  Senior Lien Toll Revenue Bonds #1 Series 2015 
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

9



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                -$                  -$                -$                  26,747,419$ 22,632,431$ 18,517,443$ 14,402,455$ 

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Expenditures:

Principal -                    -                  -                    -                  2,057,494     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     
Interest Expense -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Fees -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total Debt Service Expenditures -                    -                  -                    -                  2,057,494     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     

Total Expenditures -                    -                  -                    -                  2,057,494     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  General Fund (From Bond Proceeds for -                    -                  -                    -                  28,804,913   -                    -                    -                    -                    
    Capitalized Interest) -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                  -                    -                  28,804,913   -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           - -$          -$       26,747,419$ 22,632,431$ 18,517,443$ 14,402,455$ 10,287,467$

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by First Southwest Company

Comment -- Although shown as one bond issue, two issues may be executed in order to save on capitalized interest.

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund  Senior Lien Toll Revenue Bonds #2 Series 2017 
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

10



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                  -$                  3,212,013$    3,864,204$  4,630,041$  5,166,048$  7,042,611$    8,088,286$    

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
Design -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
ROW -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
Construction -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
  Total SH 365 -                    807,069         -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

IBTC
Environmental -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
Design -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
ROW -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
Construction -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
  Total IBTC -                    807,069         -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

Total Expenditures -                    1,614,138      -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
  General Fund -                    1,614,138      3,212,013      652,191         765,837       536,007       1,876,563    1,045,675      506,651         

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

Total Other Financing Sources -                    1,614,138      3,212,013      652,191         765,837       536,007       1,876,563    1,045,675      506,651         

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          3,212,013$   3,864,204$   4,630,041$  5,166,048$ 7,042,611$ 8,088,286$   8,594,937$   

Plan

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Capital Project Fund - Funded by VRFs
For Fiscal Year Ending December31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

11



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   105,000$  210,000$  315,000$  420,000$  525,000$  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
  Pharr, Edinburg & Weslaco @ $25,000 -                     75,000           50,000           75,000           75,000      75,000      75,000      75,000      75,000      
  San Juan & Alamo @ $15,000 -                     30,000           30,000           30,000           30,000      30,000      30,000      30,000      30,000      
Total Revenues -                     105,000         80,000           105,000         105,000    105,000    105,000    105,000    105,000    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                     -                -                -                -                -                
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
ROW -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

IBTC
Environmental -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
ROW -                     105,000         -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
  Total IBTC -                     105,000         -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

Total Expenditures -                     105,000         -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
  General Fund -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

-                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

Total Other Financing Sources -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

Ending Fund Balance -$          -$          80,000$        105,000$      210,000$  315,000$ 420,000$ 525,000$ 630,000$ 

Plan

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Capital Project Fund - Funded by Cities
For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

12



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                  -$                1,293,144$    1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
  State Grant -                    25,000,000   -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Category 10 -                    1,900,000     1,293,144   5,600,000      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Total Revenues -                    26,900,000   1,293,144   5,600,000      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Design -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
ROW -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Construction -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Total SH 365 -                    1,900,000     -                  5,600,000      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

IBTC
Environmental -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Design -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
ROW -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Construction -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Total IBTC -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

I 68
Environmental -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Design -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
ROW -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Construction -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Total I 68 -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total Expenditures -                    1,900,000     -                  5,600,000      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
  General Fund -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

-                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
-                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Ending Fund Balance -$          25,000,000$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$   1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Capital Project Fund - Funded by State Grants
For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

13



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   48,518,464$  51,246,410$  13,651,000$  1,718,000$    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest -                     110,155         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues -                     110,155         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
ROW -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     37,595,410    11,933,000    1,718,000      -                     -                     -                     -                     

IBTC
Environmental -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
ROW -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Expenditures 705,461         32,873,509    37,595,410    11,933,000    1,718,000      -                     -                     -                     -                     

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
VRF 13 Bond Construction Fund Proceeds 51,951,871    -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 51,951,871    -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Ending Fund Balance 51,246,410$  15,755,110$ 13,651,000$ 1,718,000$   -$           -$          -$          -$          -$          

Plan

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Bond Construction Fund - Senior Lein VRF Revenue & Refunding Bonds Series 2013 
For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

14



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                   99,549,196$       94,494,196$       80,740,196$       -$                      -$                   

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Interest -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     

Total Revenues -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Design -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
ROW -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Construction -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                          45,704,000    5,055,000           13,754,000         80,740,196         -                        -                     

IBTC
Environmental -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Design -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
ROW -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Construction -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                          45,704,000    5,055,000           13,754,000         80,740,196         -                        -                     

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
TxDOT Bond Construction Fund Proceeds -                     -                     -                          145,253,196  -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                          145,253,196  -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          -$               99,549,196$ 94,494,196$      80,740,196$      -$               -$             -$          

Total 19,616,000$       22,225,000$  49,634,000$       22,047,000$       22,547,000$       136,069,000$   
SH 365 -                      -                 -                      22,017,000         22,547,000         44,564,000       
IBTC 19,616,000$       22,225,000$  49,634,000$       30,000$              -$                    91,505,000$     

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Bond Construction Fund  TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds Series 2015 (SH 365 Segments 1-4)
Fund Balance Summary

Plan

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

15



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   49,663,496$    29,496$         -$                  -$                    -$                  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Interest -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    

Total Revenues -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    

IBTC
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                     41,841,000    49,634,000      29,496           -                    -                      -                    

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                     41,841,000    49,634,000      29,496           -                    -                      -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
TxDOT Bond Construction Fund Proceeds -                     -                     -                     91,504,496    -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                     91,504,496    -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          -$          49,663,496$ 29,496$           -$         -$         -$           -$         

Total 19,616,000$   22,225,000$  49,634,000$    22,047,000$  22,547,000$  136,069,000$  
SH 365 -                 -                 -                  22,017,000    22,547,000    44,564,000      
IBTC 19,616,000$   22,225,000$  49,634,000$    30,000$         -$              91,505,000$    

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Bond Construction Fund  TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds  Series 2015 (IBTC)
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

16



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                   -$                    72,295,282$  3,180,282$    500,000$       500,000$       

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Interest -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                    -                     27,646,000      69,115,000    2,680,282      -                    -                    

IBTC
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                    -                     27,646,000      69,115,000    2,680,282      -                    -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
SIB Bond Construction Fund Proceeds -                     -                     -                    -                     99,941,282      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                    -                     99,941,282      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          -$         -$          72,295,282$   3,180,282$   500,000$      500,000$      500,000$      

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET
Bond Construction Fund - SIB Loan

Fund Balance Summary

Plan

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

17



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                    29,203,429$    -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Interest -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

IBTC
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                    20,738,000      29,203,429      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                    20,738,000      29,203,429      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
Sr Lien Rev Bonds -                     -                     -                    49,941,429      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                    49,941,429      I -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          -$         29,203,429$   -$            -$         -$         -$         -$         

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Bond Construction Fund  Senior Lien Toll Revenue Bonds #1 Series 2015 
Fund Balance Summary

Plan

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

18



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                    -$                    30,402,143$  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Interest -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

IBTC
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                    -                      21,855,000      30,402,143    -                    -                    -                    

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                    -                      21,855,000      30,402,143    -                    -                    -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
Sr Lien Rev Bonds -                     -                     -                    -                      52,257,143      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                    -                      52,257,143      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          -$         -$           30,402,143$   -$         -$         -$         -$         

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Bond Construcction Fund  Senior Lien Toll Revenue Bonds #2 Series 2017 
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

19



Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS EXPENDITURE BUDGET SUMMARY
All Capital Projects Funds
(in Thousand $s)
For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

SOURCES:

CPF - VRFs Fund -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             
CPF - Cities -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
CPF - State Grants -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Bond Construction Funds -               -               -               5,600       -               5,600       -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
  VRFs Series 2013 40,321     -               40,321     -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
  TxDOT Reimb Bonds (Seg 1-4) -               -               -               145,254   -               145,254   -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
  TxDOT Reimb Bonds (IBTC) -               -               -               -               91,504     91,504     -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
  SIB Loan -               -               -               -               -               -               99,441     -               99,441     -               -               -               -               
  Toll Revenue Bonds #1 -               -               -               -               49,941     49,941     -               52,257     52,257     -               -               -               -               
  Toll Revenue Bonds #2 -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

  TOTAL SOURCES 40,321$   -$             40,321$   150,854$ 141,445$ 292,299$ 99,441$   52,257$   151,698$ -$             -$             -$             -$             

SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365

USE (EXPENDITURES):

CPF - VRFs Fund -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             

CPF - Cities -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           

CPF - State Grants -           -           -           5,600       -           5,600       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           

Bond Construction Funds
  VRFs Series 2013 26,670     -           26,670     11,933     -           11,933     1,718       -           1,718       -           -           -           -           

  TxDOT Reimb Bonds (Seg 1-4) -           -           -           45,704     -           45,704     5,055       -           5,055       13,754     -           13,754     80,740     

  TxDOT Reimb Bonds (IBTC) -           -           -           -           41,841     41,841     -           49,634     49,634     -           30            30            -           

  SIB Loan -           -           -           -           -           -           27,646     -           27,646     69,115     -           69,115     2,680       

  Toll Revenue Bonds #1 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           20,738     20,738     -           29,203     29,203     -           

  Toll Revenue Bonds #2 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           21,855     21,855     -           30,402     30,402     -           

  TOTAL USES (EXPENDITURES): 26,670$   -$     26,670$   63,237$   41,841$   105,078$ 34,419$   92,227$   126,646$ 82,869$   59,635$   142,504$ 83,420$   

Comment:  Sources and Uses agree to Strategic Plan Prepared September 2014

Remaining Issues:
CPF - VRFs Fund Balance @ 2020 8,595$     
CPF - Cities Fund Balance @2020 630          
CPF - State Grant Fund Balance @ 2020 1,293       
BCF - SIB Loan Fund Balance @ 2020 500          

11,018$   
Rep. Martinez Grant - Not Located 25,000     
  Total 36,018$   

20172014 2015 2016

20



CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS EXPENDITURE BUDGET SUMMARY -- Cont'd

-$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                -$                -$                
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              -              -                  
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              -              -                  
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               5,600           -              5,600          
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               40,321         -              40,321        
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               145,254       -              145,254      
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              91,504        91,504        
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               99,941         -              99,941        
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              102,198      102,198      
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              -              -                  

-$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             291,116$     193,702$    484,818$    

IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total

-$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                -$                -$                

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -              

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           5,600           -              5,600          

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           40,321         -              40,321        

-           80,740     -           -           -           -           -           -           145,253       -              145,253      

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              91,505        91,505        

-           2,680       -           -           -           -           -           -           99,441         -              99,441        

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              49,941        49,941        

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              52,257        52,257        

-$     83,420$   -$     -$     -$     -$     -$     -$     290,615$     193,703$    484,318$    

2018 2019 2020 Total

21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 2 



 
 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     2                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 2 – REVIEW OF MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT.   
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Review of monthly financial report with Salinas Allen Schmidt.      
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Review only.           
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 3 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 3 – REVIEW OF PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

WITH THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE STATE HIGHWAY 365 
PROJECT.             

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 

Review of the Project Development Agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for 
the State Highway 365 Project.          

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Review only.           
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 4 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     4                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 4 – INTERVIEW OF SHORT LIST FOR AUDITING 

SERVICES FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.   
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 

Interview of short list firm for Audit Services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Interview only.           
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Interview Questions for 
Auditing Services 

 
 

 
 
1. What steps will be taken to ensure an orderly transition from the prior auditor?  

(0-5 points) 
 
 
 
 

2. What risk assessment techniques will you use when performing the audit?  
(0-5 points) 

 
 
 
 

3. What criteria do you use to determine materiality?  (0-5 points) 
 
 
 
 

4. How do you intend to staff the engagement and what is the expected level of 
participation by the engagement partner? (0-5 points) 

 
 
 

5. Briefly explain your firm’s audit experience with Regional Mobility Authorities or 
other government agencies? (0-5 points) 



 

 

FINAL RANKING FOR AUDITING SERVICES 

2014 

 
Firms are ranked on a twenty-five (25) point scale. The firm with the highest total score will be ranked first. 

 

 

            RATER             

         1  2  3  4  5  6  7 Total   Ranking 

Padgett Stratemann Co.                                                 

Burton McCumber & Cortez LLP                                       ___ 

PMB Helin Donovan                                          ___      

      



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     2A                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           12/09/14                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING HELD NOVEMBER 20, 

2014.               
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of Minutes for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board 

of Directors Regular Meeting held November 20, 2014.       
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the minutes for the Board of Director’s Regular  

Meeting held November 20, 2014, as presented.        
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – November 20, 2014  1   

 
STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
 
The  Hidalgo  County  Regional Mobility  Authority  Board  of  Directors  convened  for  a  Regular Meeting  on  Thursday, 
November 20, 2014, at 5:30 pm at the Pharr City Hall, City Commission Chambers, 2nd Floor, 118 South Cage Boulevard, 
Pharr, Texas, with the following present: 
 

Board Members:    Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman      HCRMA 
        Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer    HCRMA 
        Josue Reyes, Vice‐Chairman      HCRMA 
        Forrest Runnels, Director      HCRMA 
        Michael G. Cano, Director      HCRMA 

Alonzo Cantu, Director        HCRMA 
 
Absent:       David Guerra, Director        HCRMA 
 
Staff:      Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director    HCRMA 
        Celia Gaona, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer  HCRMA 

Carlos Moreno, Acquisition Coordinator      HCRMA 
Bianca Islas, Administrative Clerk    HCRMA 

        Daniel G. Rios, Legal Counsel      HCRMA 
        Louis Jones, Program Manager      HCRMA 

                 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Chairman Sweeten lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Chairman Sweeten lead the Invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER FOR WORKSHOP 
 

Chairman Sweeten called the workshop to order at 5:30 pm.  
 
1. Review of Quarterly Investment Report for period ending September 30, 2014 

Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director, gave a brief presentation of the Quarterly Investment Report for period ending 
September 30, 2014. No action taken. 

 
ADJOURNMENT FOR WORKSHOP 
 
CALL TO ORDER FOR REGULAR MEETING AND ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Chairman Sweeten called the regular meeting to order at 5:33 pm.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

None. 
 
 

 



HCRMA Minutes – November 20, 2014  2   

1. REPORTS 
 

A. Report on Program Manager Activity for SH 365 and IBTC – Louis Jones, Dannenbaum Engineering. 
Louis Jones and Eric Davila, Dannenbaum Engineering, reported on the progress to date for the SH 365 and 

IBTC Projects. George Ramon reported on the oversized/overweight permits issued to date. No action taken. 

2. CONSENT AGENDA.  
 
Motion by Michael Cano, with a second by Alonzo Cantu, to approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of 
2F and 2G. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting held October 22, 2014. 

Approved the Minutes for Regular Meeting held October 22, 2014 as presented. 
 

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from October 9, 2014 to November 11, 2014. 
Approved the Project & General Expense Report for the period of October 9, 2014 to November 11, 2014 as 
presented. 

 
C. Approval of Financial Report for October 2014. 

Approved the Financial Report for October 2014 as presented. 
 

D. Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for period ending September 30, 2014. 
Approved the Quarterly Investment Report for period ending September 30, 2014 as presented. 

 
E. Resolution 2014‐99 – Approval of Interlocal Cooperative Contract with the University of Texas Pan American 

to conduct a toll road economic analysis. 
Approved Resolution 2014‐99 – Approval of Interlocal Cooperative Contract with the University of Texas Pan 
American to conduct a toll road economic analysis in the amount of $35,353.00. 
 

F. Resolution  2014‐100  –  Approval  of  Supplemental  Number  1  to  Work  Authorization  Number  4  to  the 
Professional Service Agreement with TEDSI Infrastructure for final Plans, Specifications and Estimates for the 
US  281/Military  Highway  Overpass  Project  for  additional  bridge  detailing  due  to  Texas  Department  of 
Transportation bridge detail updates. 
No Action Taken. 

 
G. Resolution 2014‐101 – Approval of Supplemental Number 3 to the Professional Service Agreement with TEDSI 

Infrastructure to increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization 
Number 4. 
No Action Taken. 
 

H. Resolution 2014‐102 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 1 to Professional 
Service Agreement with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates for additional topography required for right of way 
areas  changes  on  the  State Highway  365  Project  from  SH  336  to  FM  3072  due  to  Texas Department  of 
Transportation Design Manual updates. 
Approved Resolution 2014‐102 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2  to Work Authorization Number 1  to 
Professional Service Agreement with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates for additional topography required for 
right of way areas changes on the State Highway 365 Project from SH 336 to FM 3072 due to Texas Department 
of Transportation Design Manual updates in the amount of $14,772.50. 

 
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – November 20, 2014  3   

I. Resolution  2014‐103  – Approval  of  Supplemental Number  3  to  the  Professional  Service Agreement with 
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates to increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 2 to 
Work Authorization Number 1. 
Approved Resolution 2014‐103 – Approval of Supplemental Number 3 to the Professional Service Agreement 
with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates to increase the maximum payable amount by $14,772.50 for a revised 
maximum payable amount of $907,168.75. 
 

J. Resolution  2014‐104  –  Approval  of  Supplemental  Number  2  to  Work  Authorization  Number  1  to  the 
Professional Service Agreement with DOS Land Surveying for additional topography required for right of way 
area changes on the State Highway 365 Project from the SH 336 to FM 396 Road due to Texas Department of 
Transportation Design Manual updates. 
Approved Resolution 2014‐104 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with DOS Land Surveying for additional topography required for right of way 
area changes on the State Highway 365 Project from the SH 336 to FM 396 Road due to Texas Department of 
Transportation Design Manuals in the amount of $30,984.50. 

 
K. Resolution 2014‐105 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Professional Service Agreement with DOS Land 

Surveying  to  increase  the maximum payable  amount  for  Supplemental Number 2  to Work Authorization 
Number 1. 
Approved Resolution 2014‐105 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Professional Service Agreement with 
DOS  Land  Surveying  to  increase  the  maximum  payable  amount  for  Supplemental  Number  2  to  Work 
Authorization Number 1 by $30,984.50 for a revised maximum payable amount of $787,544.29. 
 

L. Resolution 2014‐106 – Approval Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional 
Service Agreement with Raba Kistner  for a no‐cost work schedule modification due  to  rain delays  for  the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. 
Approved Resolution 2014‐106 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Raba Kistner for a no‐cost work schedule modification due to rain delays 
for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. 

 
M. Resolution 2014‐109 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to Professional 

Service Agreement with Halff Associates  for  final Plans, Specifications and Estimates  for  the  International 
Bridge Trade Corridor Project to update the 100 year flood plain elevations. 
Approved Resolution 2014‐109 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1  to Work Authorization Number 1  to 
Professional  Service Agreement with Halff Associates  for  final  Plans,  Specifications  and  Estimates  for  the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project  to update the 100 year  flood plain elevations  in the amount of 
$46,150.88. 
 

N. Resolution 2014‐110 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with Halff 
Associates  to  increase  the maximum payable amount  for Supplemental Number 1  to Work Authorization 
Number 1. 
Approved Resolution 2014‐110 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to the Professional Service Agreement 
with  Halff  Associates  to  increase  the  maximum  payable  amount  for  Supplemental  Number  1  to  Work 
Authorization Number 1 by $46,150.88 for a revised maximum payable amount of $2,099,825.11. 

 
3. REGULAR AGENDA 

 
A. Resolution  2014‐107  –  Approval  of  Supplemental  Number  1  to  Work  Authorization  Number  2  to  the 

Professional Service Agreement with S&B Infrastructure for final Plans, Specifications and Estimates for the 
State Highway 365 Project for additional bridge detailing due to Texas Department of Transportation bridge 
manual detail updates. 
No Action taken. 
 



HCRMA Minutes – November 20, 2014  4   

B. Resolution 2014‐108 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with S&B 
Infrastructure to increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization 
Number 2. 
No Action taken. 
 

C. Resolution 2014‐111 – Appointment of a Committee to Rate, Rank and Short List Requests for Qualifications 
for Audit Services. 
Motion by Josue Reyes, with a second by Michael Cano, to appoint the Finance Committee to rate, rank and 
short list Requests for Qualifications for Audit Services.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
A. Report on Texas Transportation Commission Meeting held October 30, 2014 in El Paso, Texas. 

Chairman Sweeten reported on the meeting with Texas Department of Transportation held October 30, 2014. 

 

5.  TABLED ITEMS 
 
A. Resolution 2014‐49 – Approval of Work Authorization Number 4 to Professional Service Agreement with 

L&G Engineering to provide final plans, specifications and estimates for the State Highway 365 Project from 
FM 396 (Anzalduas Highway) to FM 1016 (Conway Avenue).                                                                                                       
No action taken. 
 

B. Resolution  2014‐70  – Approval of  Interlocal Agreement with  the City of Mission  for participation with  a 
waterline adjustment  in conflict with the State Highway 365 Project Segment 4 from FM 396 to FM 1016.        
No action taken. 
 

6. EXECUTIVE  SESSION, CHAPTER 551,  TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE,  SECTION  551.071  (CONSULTATION WITH 
ATTORNEY),  SECTION  551.072  (DELIBERATION  OF  REAL  PROPERTY)  AND  SECTION  551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  

 
Motion by Michael Cano, with a second by Rick Perez, to enter into Executive Session to consult with the Board 
Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining to  Items 6A and 6B under Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Chairman Sweeten recessed the meeting to enter into Executive Session at 6:03 pm. Chairman Sweeten reconvened 
the meeting at 6:23 pm with no action taken on any of the items discussed in Executive Session items. 
 

 
A. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the deliberation of real property for the State 

Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects (Section 551.072 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 

 

B. Consultation  with  Board  Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  Early  Right  of  Way  Acquisition  and 
environmental clearance process for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects 
(Section 551.071 T.G.C). 
No action taken.  
 

C. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the use of Eminent Domain to acquire property 
required to complete the project alignments of the State Highway 365 and the  International Bridge Trade 
Corridor Projects (Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 



HCRMA Minutes – November 20, 2014  5   

No action taken.  

 

D. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the proposed South Texas Class I Rail Project 
(Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 

 

E. Consultation with  Board Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  an  Interlocal Agreement with  the Donna 
Irrigation District for the acquisition of real property and construction of improvements for the International 
Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.) 
No action taken. 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, the meeting was adjourned at 6:23 pm.  
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2B                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           12/09/14                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF PROJECT AND GENERAL EXPENSE REPORT FROM 

NOVEMBER 12, 2014 THROUGH DECEMBER 5, 2014       
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of project and general expense report for the period from   

November 12, 2014 to December 5, 2014.         
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A  Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 
    General Account     $    58,744.44 

   VRF Bond Account     $1,432,939.07 
   R.O.W Services     $   399,240.00 
   Total Project Expenses for Reporting Period  $1,890,923.51 

       
      Fund Balance after Expenses   $33,744,413  
  
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the project and general expense report for the  

period from November 12, 2014 to December 5, 2014, as presented.     
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _ X    Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Memorandum 
To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: December 9, 2014 

Re: Expense Report for the Period from November 12, 2014 to December 5, 2014  

Attached is the expense report for the period commencing on November 12, 2014 and ending on 
December 5, 2014. 
 
Expenses for the General Account total $58,744.44, the VRF Bond Account total $1,432,939.07, and for 
the ROW Services total $399,240.00. The aggregate expense for the reporting period is $1,890,923.51. 
  
Based on review by this office, approval of expenses for the reporting period is recommended in 
the aggregate amount of $1,890,923.51. 
 
This leaves a fund balance (all funds) after expenses of $33,744,413. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2C 



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2C                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           12/09/14                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 

2014.              
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of financial report for the month of November 2014.    
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 

Funding Source:         
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the Financial Report for the Month of   

November 2014, as presented.             
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
  
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9.    Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _    Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2D 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2D                             
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED         12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE      12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2014-113 – APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 2 TO 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 13 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING FOR A NO-COST TIME EXTENSION FOR THE REGIONAL 
TOLL ANALYSIS FOR THE STATE HIGHWAY 365 AND INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE TRADE 
CORRIDOR PROJECTS.           

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 13 to Professional Service  

Agreement with Dannanbaum Engineering to provide a no-cost time extension to perform the  
Regional Toll Analysis for SH 365 and IBTC Projects.       

  
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:        X   Yes           No          N/A   Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 

Approved maximum payable fee         $17,881,726.68  
Approved Work Authorizations 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 w/ S1-7, 8 w/S1, 9, * 
       10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 & 18  $17,881,726.68 
Maximum fee balance                     $                0.00 
 
Total authorized for WA 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 w/ S1-7, 8 w/S1, 9 *     $17,881,726.68 
       10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 & 18  
Payments to date for WA 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 w/ S1-7, 8 w/S1, 9    
       10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 & 18 ($  8,962,517.25) 

 Work authorization balance              $  8,919,209.43 
 

*Proposed Work Authorization No. 7 with City of Pharr canceled  
 

 Proposed Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 13: 
 Regional Toll Analysis time extension    $0.00 
    
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2014-113 – Approval of Supplemental 

Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 13 to the Professional Service Agreement with  
Dannenbaum Engineering for a no-cost time extension for the Regional Toll Analysis for  
State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor is recommended.   
 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 



 

To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: December 9, 2014 

Re: Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 13 with 
Dannenbaum Engineering to provide a Regional Toll Analysis for IBTC & 
SH 365 Projects 

Background 
At the October 27, 2011, regular meeting, the Board of Directors awarded a professional service agreement for 
general engineering and program management services to Dannenbaum Engineering (DEC) for a maximum 
payable amount of $5,000,000. Subsequently, the Board approved Work Authorizations No. 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 
Supplemental 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 & 6 to Work Authorization No. 6, Work Authorization Number 8, Supplemental 1 to Work 
Authorization 8, Work Authorization Number 9, Work Authorization Number 11, Work Authorization Number 12, 
Work Authorization Number 13, Work Authorization Number 14, Work Authorization Number 15 and Work 
Authorization Number 16 in the amounts of $909,960.63, $57,750.00, $891,814.61, $832,369.93, $689,834.33, 
$81,309.04, $149,120.30, $346,720.31, $1,437,465.41, $117,054.83, $460,000.00, $10,340,781.60, $285,984.85, 
$49,034.16, $180,053.72, $89,062.56, $397,750.88, $80,256.47 and $215,571.04 (Supplemental 6 to Work 
Authorization 6, Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization 13, Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization 10 and 
Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization 17 were all for no-cost) respectively as discussed below.  
 
Work Authorization No. 1 - was to review prior engineering, surveying, environmental and permitting work provided 
to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA). 
Work Authorization No. 2 - was cancelled by the HCRMA Board.  
Work Authorization No. 3 - was to provide title reports for the State Highway 365 (SH 365) Project. 
Work Authorization No. 4 - was to update the new Executive Director, oversee the update of the Traffic & Revenue 
study, oversee environmental clearance/preliminary design of SH 365 and oversee various other tasks related to SH 
365 and IBTC Projects.  
Work Authorizations No. 5 & 6 - are to continue Program Management for SH 365 and International Bridge Trade 
Corridor (IBTC) Projects.  
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a sketch level Traffic & Revenue Study for 
overweight trucks at the Pharr International Bridge and SH 365.  
Supplemental No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a Value Engineering Study for the SH 365 Project.  
Supplemental No. 3 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a low level aerial flight and topographic survey for 
the IBTC Project.  
Supplemental No. 4 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to provide updated TRZ parcels, implementation of 
overweight truck corridor, manage Engineers/Surveyors/Geotech for IBTC, local environment clearance of IBTC, 
negotiate final PS&E for SH 365, implement ProjectWise, evaluate Toll Integrator, manage Appraisers/Title 
Companies/ROW Agents, implement GIS for ROW Acquisition and perform value engineering for IBTC. 
Supplemental No. 5 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to provide non-destructive vertical utility locations for design 
of final PS&E for the SH 365 Project. 
Supplemental No. 6 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to revise the scope of services to include additional 
environmental coordination meeting required by TxDOT, as well as, analysis, meetings, exhibits and estimates for 
intervention in the Cross Valley Project. 
Work Authorization No. 7 – was cancelled by the City of Pharr. 
Work Authorization No. 8 – was to provide continued program management for the SH 365 and Overweight Corridor 
Projects only. 
Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization No. 8 – revise the scope of work to include the IBTC Project and to deduct 
balance of work and close out the Work Authorization No. 8. 
 
 



 
Page 2 
Supplemental No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 13 
December 9, 2014 
 
 
Work Authorization No. 9 – includes program and construction management of SH 365 and IBTC Projects through 
facility opening and operation in 2018. 
Work Authorization No. 10 – includes an update the right of way strip map for the IBTC Project due to value 
engineering changes. 
Work Authorization No. 11 – provides a low level aerial topographic survey for the IBTC Project due to value 
engineering changes. 
Work Authorization No. 12 – updates 2,215 un-coded property parcels in HCRMA Transportation Reinvestment 
Zone Number 2. 
Work Authorization No. 13 – provides an Environmental Assessment Regional Toll Analysis required by the Texas 
Department of Transportation. 
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 13 – provides for a no-cost scope clarification for the Regional Toll 
Analysis. 
Work Authorization No. 14 – provides an Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue Study for SH 365, IBTC and SH 68 
Projects. 
Work Authorization No. 15 – provides a TIGER Grant Application for the SH 365 project. 
Supplemental No. 7 to Work Authorization No. 6 – is proposed to provide additional non-destructive vertical utility 
locations for the SH 365 project. 
Work Authorization No. 16 – provides an H&H Study for the SH 365 and IBTC drainage service areas. 
Work Authorization No. 17 – provides traffic signal warrant projected traffic counts for SH 365 and IBTC Projects. 
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 10 – provides for a no-cost time extension to update the right of way 
strip map for the IBTC Project. 
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 17 – provides for a no-cost time extension to provide traffic signal 
warrant projected traffic counts for SH 365 and IBTC Projects. 
Work Authorization No. 18 – provides for non-destructive vertical utility locations for the IBTC Project. 
  
Goal 
A no-cost time extension is being proposed for Work Authorization Number 13, which is to perform a Regional Toll 
Analysis for both the IBTC and SH 365 Projects. Time is extended to November 30, 2014.  
 
Supplemental 2 to Work Authorization Number 13 is at no-cost to the HCRMA. 
 
Options 
The Board of Directors may disapprove Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 13, however, the 
Supplemental is no-cost and does not increase the contract amount.  
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2014-113 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to 
Work Authorization Number 13 to Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering for a no-
cost time extension for the Regional Toll Analysis is recommended. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2014 – 113 
 

APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 2 TO WORK 
AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 13 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION 
FOR A NO-COST TIME EXTENSION FOR  THE REGIONAL TOLL 

ANALYSIS FOR STATE HIGHWAY 365 AND INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE 
TRADE CORRIDOR PROJECTS  

 
THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of December, 2014, by the Board of Directors of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2011 the Authority awarded a professional service 
agreement for general engineering and program management services to Dannenbaum 
Engineering Corporation in the maximum payable amount of $5,000,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has subsequently approved Work Authorizations Numbers 1, 

3, 4, 5 and 6, including Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 4,   
Supplemental Numbers 1 & 2 to Work Authorization Number 5, and Supplemental Numbers 1, 
2, 3,4, 5 & 6 to Work Authorization Number 6, in the amounts of $909,960.63, $57,750.00, 
$694,355.85, $769,236.96, $920,263.67, $346,720.31, $1,437,465.41 and 117,054.83 
respectively; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 18, 2013, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 6 to 

Work Authorization Number 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum 
Engineering to revise the scope of service with no increase in the Work Authorization Number 6 
amount; and 

 
WHEREAS,  on January 22, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization Number 

8 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering to continue program 
management for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects in the 
amount of $574,581.59 and increased the maximum payable amount to $5,827,389.25; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 24, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 1 to 

Work Authorization Number 8 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum 
Engineering that deducted work in the amount of $114,851.59 for a revised Work Authorization 
amount of $459,730.00 and closed out Work Authorization Number 8; and 

 
 
 



WHEREAS, on February 24, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 9 for Program and Construction Management of the State Highway 365 and 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects from 2014 to 2018 in the amount of 
$10,340,781.60 and increased the maximum payable amount to $16,053,589.26; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 10 to modify and update the right of way strip map for the International Bridge 
Trade Corridor Project in the amount of $285,984.85; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 11 to provide an updated low level aerial topographic survey for the International 
Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount of $49,034.16; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 12 to provide the Hidalgo County Transportation Reinvestment Zone Number 2 
property ownership update for 2,215 un-coded property parcels in the amount of 
$180,053.72; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 13 to provide an Environmental Assessment Regional Toll Analysis in the 
amount of $89,062.56; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 23, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 1 to 

Work Authorization Number 13 for a no-cost scope clarification for the Environmental 
Assessment Regional Toll Analysis; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve 

Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 13 for a no-cost time extension 
for the Environmental Assessment Regional Toll Analysis; 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization 
Number 13 to the Professional Services Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation 
hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Supplemental Number 2 
to Work Authorization Number 13 as approved. 
 

***** 
 
 
 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of December, 2014, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
              
      Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
              
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 2 TO WORK AUTHORIZTION NUMBER 13  
TO  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING 
CORPORATION DATED OCTOBER 27, 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Contract 

 

 

Hidalgo County  

Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 

 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 

CONSULTANT PROJECT 

 

Engineering Services for any and all 

Services Required for the Development of 

all Projects undertaken by the Authority 

including the Entire Loop Project 
 

SWA No. 2 to WA No. 13 
 

December 05, 2014 

 



SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 2 

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 13 

Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 

HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No. 13 

Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation 

Attachment D-2 (SWA 2 to WA 13) – Page 1 

  



SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 2 

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 13 

Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 

HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No. 13 

Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation 

Attachment D-2 (SWA 2 to WA 13) – Page 2 

ATTACHMENT D-2 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 2  

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 13 

AGREEMENT FOR  ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of 

“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Program Management Engineering Services” 

hereinafter identified as the “Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 

Authority (Authority), and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (the Engineer). 
  
The following terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. 13 are hereby amended as follows: 

 

 

Part II  The schedule as outlined in Work Authorization No. 13 will be amended to include Exhibit ‘C’ Revised 

Work Schedule extending termination date to November 30, 2014 (Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to Work 

Authorization No. 13).  
 

 

Part III  The maximum amount payable under this Work Authorization No. 13 will remain at $89,062.56. Fee 

will not be modified. The Engineer’s Estimated Work Authorization No. 13 tasks have been modified with no 

increase in fee. 
 

 

This Supplemental Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final execution of the parties 

hereto.  All other terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. 13 not hereby amended are to remain in full 

force and effect.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and 

hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

 

 

 

      THE ENGINEER          THE AUTHORITY  

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Signature)      (Signature) 

__Louis H. Jones, Jr., P.E.________   __Pilar Rodriguez, P.E.___________ 

 (Printed Name)     (Printed Name) 

__Principal_____________________  __Executive Director_____________ 

 (Title)       (Title) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Date)       (Date) 



ID Task Name Start Finish

1 1. Project Management Tue 4/1/14 Sun 11/30/14
2 2. Transportation System Context Tue 4/1/14 Sun 11/30/14
3 A. Facility Inventory and Time Differentials Tue 4/1/14 Sun 11/30/14
4 B. Toll Policy and Toll Rate Determination Tue 4/1/14 Sun 11/30/14
5 C. Toll Collection Policies Tue 4/1/14 Sun 11/30/14
6 D. Proposed Facility Toll collection and Accesss Point Tue 4/1/14 Sun 11/30/14
7 3. Environmental Justice Tue 4/1/14 Sun 11/30/14
8 A.Population Tue 4/1/14 Sun 11/30/14
9 B. Travel Impacts Tue 4/1/14 Sun 11/30/14
10 C. Mitigation Measures Tue 4/1/14 Sun 11/30/14
11 4. Documentation and Summary of Assessment and Mitigation Tue 4/1/14 Sun 11/30/14

3/304/64/134/204/275/45/115/185/256/1 6/86/156/226/297/67/137/207/278/38/108/178/248/319/79/149/219/2810/510/1210/1910/2611/211/911/1611/2311/3012
April May June July August September October November Dece

Exhibit C ‐ Work Schedule
SWA No. 2 to WA No. 13

Page 1 Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project)
HCRMA Engineering Agreement/Work Authorization No. 13

Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2E 



 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

         
AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2E                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED         12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE      12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2014-114 – APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 16 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING FOR A NO-COST TIME EXTENSION FOR OFF SITE 
HYDROLOGY AND HYDRAULIC STUDY FOR THE STATE HIGHWAY 365 AND 
INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE TRADE CORRIDOR PROJECTS.      

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 16 to Professional Service  

Agreement with Dannanbaum Engineering to provide a no-cost time extension to perform an off 
site Hydrology and Hydraulic Study for SH 365 and IBTC Projects.      

  
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:        X   Yes           No          N/A   Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 

Approved maximum payable fee         $17,881,726.68  
Approved Work Authorizations 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 w/ S1-7, 8 w/S1, 9, * 
       10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 & 18  $17,881,726.68 
Maximum fee balance                     $                0.00 
 
Total authorized for WA 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 w/ S1-7, 8 w/S1, 9 *     $17,881,726.68 
       10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 & 18  
Payments to date for WA 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 w/ S1-7, 8 w/S1, 9    
       10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 & 18 ($  8,962,517.25) 

 Work authorization balance              $  8,919,209.43 
 

*Proposed Work Authorization No. 7 with City of Pharr canceled  
 

 Proposed Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 16: 
 Regional Toll Analysis time extension    $0.00 
    
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2014-114 – Approval of Supplemental 

Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 16 to the Professional Service Agreement with  
Dannenbaum Engineering for a no-cost time extension for off site Hydrology and   
Hydraulic Study for State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor is   
recommended.                 
 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 



 

To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: December 9, 2014 

Re: Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 16 with 
Dannenbaum Engineering to perform Hydrology & Hydraulic Study for IBTC 
& SH 365 Projects 

Background 
At the October 27, 2011, regular meeting, the Board of Directors awarded a professional service agreement for 
general engineering and program management services to Dannenbaum Engineering (DEC) for a maximum 
payable amount of $5,000,000. Subsequently, the Board approved Work Authorizations No. 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 
Supplemental 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 & 6 to Work Authorization No. 6, Work Authorization Number 8, Supplemental 1 to Work 
Authorization 8, Work Authorization Number 9, Work Authorization Number 11, Work Authorization Number 12, 
Work Authorization Number 13, Work Authorization Number 14, Work Authorization Number 15 and Work 
Authorization Number 16 in the amounts of $909,960.63, $57,750.00, $891,814.61, $832,369.93, $689,834.33, 
$81,309.04, $149,120.30, $346,720.31, $1,437,465.41, $117,054.83, $460,000.00, $10,340,781.60, $285,984.85, 
$49,034.16, $180,053.72, $89,062.56, $397,750.88, $80,256.47 and $215,571.04 (Supplemental 6 to Work 
Authorization 6, Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization 13, Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization 10 and 
Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization 17 were all for no-cost) respectively as discussed below.  
 
Work Authorization No. 1 - was to review prior engineering, surveying, environmental and permitting work provided 
to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA). 
Work Authorization No. 2 - was cancelled by the HCRMA Board.  
Work Authorization No. 3 - was to provide title reports for the State Highway 365 (SH 365) Project. 
Work Authorization No. 4 - was to update the new Executive Director, oversee the update of the Traffic & Revenue 
study, oversee environmental clearance/preliminary design of SH 365 and oversee various other tasks related to SH 
365 and IBTC Projects.  
Work Authorizations No. 5 & 6 - are to continue Program Management for SH 365 and International Bridge Trade 
Corridor (IBTC) Projects.  
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a sketch level Traffic & Revenue Study for 
overweight trucks at the Pharr International Bridge and SH 365.  
Supplemental No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a Value Engineering Study for the SH 365 Project.  
Supplemental No. 3 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a low level aerial flight and topographic survey for 
the IBTC Project.  
Supplemental No. 4 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to provide updated TRZ parcels, implementation of 
overweight truck corridor, manage Engineers/Surveyors/Geotech for IBTC, local environment clearance of IBTC, 
negotiate final PS&E for SH 365, implement ProjectWise, evaluate Toll Integrator, manage Appraisers/Title 
Companies/ROW Agents, implement GIS for ROW Acquisition and perform value engineering for IBTC. 
Supplemental No. 5 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to provide non-destructive vertical utility locations for design 
of final PS&E for the SH 365 Project. 
Supplemental No. 6 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to revise the scope of services to include additional 
environmental coordination meeting required by TxDOT, as well as, analysis, meetings, exhibits and estimates for 
intervention in the Cross Valley Project. 
Work Authorization No. 7 – was cancelled by the City of Pharr. 
Work Authorization No. 8 – was to provide continued program management for the SH 365 and Overweight Corridor 
Projects only. 
Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization No. 8 – revise the scope of work to include the IBTC Project and to deduct 
balance of work and close out the Work Authorization No. 8. 
 
 



 
Page 2 
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 16 
December 9, 2014 
 
 
Work Authorization No. 9 – includes program and construction management of SH 365 and IBTC Projects through 
facility opening and operation in 2018. 
Work Authorization No. 10 – includes an update the right of way strip map for the IBTC Project due to value 
engineering changes. 
Work Authorization No. 11 – provides a low level aerial topographic survey for the IBTC Project due to value 
engineering changes. 
Work Authorization No. 12 – updates 2,215 un-coded property parcels in HCRMA Transportation Reinvestment 
Zone Number 2. 
Work Authorization No. 13 – provides an Environmental Assessment Regional Toll Analysis required by the Texas 
Department of Transportation. 
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 13 – provides for a no-cost scope clarification for the Regional Toll 
Analysis. 
Work Authorization No. 14 – provides an Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue Study for SH 365, IBTC and SH 68 
Projects. 
Work Authorization No. 15 – provides a TIGER Grant Application for the SH 365 project. 
Supplemental No. 7 to Work Authorization No. 6 – is proposed to provide additional non-destructive vertical utility 
locations for the SH 365 project. 
Work Authorization No. 16 – provides an H&H Study for the SH 365 and IBTC drainage service areas. 
Work Authorization No. 17 – provides traffic signal warrant projected traffic counts for SH 365 and IBTC Projects. 
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 10 – provides for a no-cost time extension to update the right of way 
strip map for the IBTC Project. 
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 17 – provides for a no-cost time extension to provide traffic signal 
warrant projected traffic counts for SH 365 and IBTC Projects. 
Work Authorization No. 18 – provides for non-destructive vertical utility locations for the IBTC Project. 
  
Goal 
A no-cost time extension is being proposed for Work Authorization Number 16, which is to perform a Hydrology and 
Hydraulic Study for both the IBTC and SH 365 Projects. Time is extended to January 31, 2015.  
 
Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization Number 16 is at no-cost to the HCRMA. 
 
Options 
The Board of Directors may disapprove Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 13, however, the 
Supplemental is no-cost and does not increase the contract amount.  
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2014-114 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to 
Work Authorization Number 16 to Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering for a no-
cost time extension to perform a Hydrology and Hydraulic Study is recommended. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2014 – 114 
 

APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO WORK 
AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 16 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION 
FOR A NO-COST TIME EXTENSION FOR OFF SITE  HYDROLOGY AND 

HYDRAULICS STUDY FOR THE STATE HIGHWAY 365 AND 
INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE TRADE CORRIDOR PROJECTS 

 
THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15TH day of December, 2014, by the Board of Directors of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2011 the Authority awarded a professional service 
agreement for general engineering and program management services to Dannenbaum 
Engineering Corporation in the maximum payable amount of $5,000,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has subsequently approved Work Authorizations Numbers 1, 

3, 4, 5 and 6, including Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 4,   
Supplemental Numbers 1 & 2 to Work Authorization Number 5, and Supplemental Numbers 1, 
2, 3,4, 5 & 6 to Work Authorization Number 6, in the amounts of $909,960.63, $57,750.00, 
$694,355.85, $769,236.96, $920,263.67, $346,720.31, $1,437,465.41 and $117,054.83 
respectively; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 18, 2013, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 6 to 

Work Authorization Number 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum 
Engineering to revise the scope of service with no increase in the Work Authorization Number 6 
amount; and 

 
WHEREAS,  on January 22, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization Number 

8 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering to continue program 
management for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects in the 
amount of $574,581.59 and increased the maximum payable amount to $5,827,389.25; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 24, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 1 to 

Work Authorization Number 8 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum 
Engineering that deducted work in the amount of $114,851.59 for a revised Work Authorization 
amount of $459,730.00 and closed out Work Authorization Number 8; and 

 
 



WHEREAS, on February 24, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 9 for Program and Construction Management of the State Highway 365 and 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects from 2014 to 2018 in the amount of 
$10,340,781.60 and increased the maximum payable amount to $16,053,589.26; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 10 to modify and update the right of way strip map for the International Bridge 
Trade Corridor Project in the amount of $285,984.85; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 11 to provide an updated low level aerial topographic survey for the International 
Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount of $49,034.16; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 12 to provide the Hidalgo County Transportation Reinvestment Zone Number 2 
property ownership update for 2,215 un-coded property parcels in the amount of 
$180,053.72; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 13 to provide an Environmental Assessment Regional Toll Analysis in the 
amount of $89,062.56; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 14 to provide an Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue Study in the amount of 
$397,750.88; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 15 to prepare a TIGER grant application in the amount of $80,256.47; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 21, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 16 to prepare a Hydraulic & Hydrology Study for the State Highway 365 and 
International Bridge Trade Corridor drainage service areas in the amount of $215,571.04; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve 

Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 16 for a no-cost time extension 
for off site Hydrology & Hydraulics Study for the State Highway 365 and International 
Bridge Trade Corridor drainage service areas; 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization 
Number 16 to the Professional Services Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation 
hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Supplemental Number 1 
to Work Authorization Number 16 as approved. 
 

***** 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of December, 2014, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
              
      Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
              
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO WORK AUTHORIZTION NUMBER 16  
TO  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING 
CORPORATION DATED OCTOBER 27, 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Contract 

 

 

Hidalgo County  

Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 

 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 

CONSULTANT PROJECT 

 

Engineering Services for any and all 

Services Required for the Development of 

all Projects undertaken by the Authority 

including the Entire Loop Project 
 

SWA No. 1 to WA No. 16 
 

December 05, 2014 

 



SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1 

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 16 

Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 

HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No. 16 

Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation 

Attachment D-2 (SWA 1 to WA 16) – Page 1 

  



SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1 

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 16 

Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 

HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No. 16 

Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation 

Attachment D-2 (SWA 1 to WA 16) – Page 2 

ATTACHMENT D-2 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1  

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 16 

AGREEMENT FOR  ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of 

“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Program Management Engineering Services” 

hereinafter identified as the “Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 

Authority (Authority), and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (the Engineer). 
  
The following terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. 16 are hereby amended as follows: 

 

 

Part II  The schedule as outlined in Work Authorization No. 16 will be amended to include Exhibit ‘C’ Revised 

Work Schedule extending termination date to January 31, 2015 (Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to Work 

Authorization No. 16).  
 

 

Part III  The maximum amount payable under this Work Authorization No. 16 will remain at $215,571.04. Fee 

will not be modified. The Engineer’s Estimated Work Authorization No. 16 tasks have been modified with no 

increase in fee. 
 

 

This Supplemental Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final execution of the parties 

hereto.  All other terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. 16 not hereby amended are to remain in full 

force and effect.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and 

hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

 

 

 

      THE ENGINEER          THE AUTHORITY  

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Signature)      (Signature) 

__Louis H. Jones, Jr., P.E.________   __Pilar Rodriguez, P.E.___________ 

 (Printed Name)     (Printed Name) 

__Principal_____________________  __Executive Director_____________ 

 (Title)       (Title) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Date)       (Date) 



ID Task 
Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 FC 161 ‐ HYDROLOGIC STUDIES 185 days Mon 5/19/14 Fri 1/30/15
2 START UP 0 days Mon 5/19/14 Mon 5/19/14
3 MEETINGS & COORDINATION 96 days Tue 5/20/14 Tue 9/30/14
4 DATA COLLECTION & SITE VISIT 24 days Mon 5/19/14 Thu 6/19/14
5 HYDROLOGIC ANALYSIS 73 days Tue 5/20/14 Thu 8/28/14
6 LiDAR PROCESSING 7 days Tue 5/20/14 Wed 5/28/14
7 SUB‐BASIN DELINEATION & 

PARAMETERS
12 days Wed 5/28/14 Thu 6/12/14

8 SUB‐WATERSHED & 
HYDROLOGIC PARAMETERS

24 days Wed 6/4/14 Mon 7/7/14

9 H&H IMPACT & MITIGATION 
ANALYSIS

29 days Wed 6/18/14 Mon 7/28/14

10 FLOOD PLAIN IMPACT & 
MITIGATION ANALYSIS

11 days Mon 7/14/14 Mon 7/28/14

11 HYDRAULIC ANAYLSIS 16 days Wed 7/16/14 Wed 8/6/14
12 SOUTH FLOODWATER CHANNEL 

H&H ANALYSIS
16 days Wed 7/16/14 Wed 8/6/14

13 DONNA LAKE EQUALIZER 
HYDRAULIC ANALYSIS

15 days Wed 8/6/14 Tue 8/26/14

14 H&H REPORT (DRAFT) 12 days Wed 8/13/14 Thu 8/28/14
15 STATE REVIEW REPORT (DRAFT) 7 days Thu 8/28/14 Fri 9/5/14

16 HYDRAULIC ANALYSIS UPDATE 
FROM DESIGN

9 days Fri 9/5/14 Wed 9/17/14

17 HYDRAULIC REPORT ‐ 100% 
SUBMITTAL

0 days Thu 9/18/14 Thu 9/18/14

18 STATE REVIEW ‐ HYDRAULIC 
REPORT 100%

6 days Thu 9/18/14 Thu 9/25/14

19 FINAL HYDRAULIC REPORT 
SUBMITTAL

4 days Thu 9/25/14 Tue 9/30/14

20 SUBMIT FINAL HYDRAULIC 
REPORT

0 days Tue 9/30/14 Tue 9/30/14

21 WORK AUTHORIZATION 
TERMINATION

66 days Fri 10/31/14 Fri 1/30/15

5/19

9/18

9/30

5/4 5/115/185/25 6/1 6/8 6/156/226/29 7/6 7/137/207/27 8/3 8/108/178/248/31 9/7 9/149/219/2810/510/1210/1910/2611/211/911/1611/2311/3012/712/1412/2112/281/4 1/111/181/25 2/1
2015

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration‐only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start‐only

Finish‐only

Deadline

Progress

SWA No. 1 to WA No. 16
 EXHIBIT C ‐ WORK SCHEDULE

IBTC HYDROLOGY AND HYDRAULICS STUDY
CIVIL SYSTEMS ENGINEERING, INC

03 Exhibit C (SWA1 to WA16) ‐ Work Schedule  Page 1

Project: IBTC  Hydrology and Hydr
Date: Mon 12/8/14



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2F 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2F                             
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED         12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE      12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2014-115 – APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 18 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING FOR A NO-COST TIME EXTENSION FOR NON 
DESTRUCTIVE UTILITY LOCATIONS FOR THE INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE TRADE 
CORRIDOR PROJECTS.           

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 18 to Professional Service  

Agreement with Dannanbaum Engineering to provide a no-cost time extension to non-destructive 
vertical utility locates for the IBTC Project.         

  
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:        X   Yes           No          N/A   Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 

Approved maximum payable fee         $17,881,726.68  
Approved Work Authorizations 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 w/ S1-7, 8 w/S1, 9, * 
       10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 & 18  $17,881,726.68 
Maximum fee balance                     $                0.00 
 
Total authorized for WA 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 w/ S1-7, 8 w/S1, 9 *     $17,881,726.68 
       10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 & 18  
Payments to date for WA 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 w/ S1-7, 8 w/S1, 9    
       10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 & 18 ($  8,962,517.25) 

 Work authorization balance              $  8,919,209.43 
 

*Proposed Work Authorization No. 7 with City of Pharr canceled  
 

 Proposed Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 18: 
 Non-destructive utility locate time extension   $0.00 
    
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2014-115 – Approval of Supplemental 

Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 18 to the Professional Service Agreement with  
Dannenbaum Engineering for a no-cost time extension for non-destructive utility locations 
for the International Bridge Trade Corridor is recommended.      
 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 



 

To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: December 9, 2014 

Re: Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 18 with 
Dannenbaum Engineering to provide Non-destructive Utility Locations for 
the IBTC Project 

Background 
At the October 27, 2011, regular meeting, the Board of Directors awarded a professional service agreement for 
general engineering and program management services to Dannenbaum Engineering (DEC) for a maximum 
payable amount of $5,000,000. Subsequently, the Board approved Work Authorizations No. 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 
Supplemental 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 & 6 to Work Authorization No. 6, Work Authorization Number 8, Supplemental 1 to Work 
Authorization 8, Work Authorization Number 9, Work Authorization Number 11, Work Authorization Number 12, 
Work Authorization Number 13, Work Authorization Number 14, Work Authorization Number 15 and Work 
Authorization Number 16 in the amounts of $909,960.63, $57,750.00, $891,814.61, $832,369.93, $689,834.33, 
$81,309.04, $149,120.30, $346,720.31, $1,437,465.41, $117,054.83, $460,000.00, $10,340,781.60, $285,984.85, 
$49,034.16, $180,053.72, $89,062.56, $397,750.88, $80,256.47 and $215,571.04 (Supplemental 6 to Work 
Authorization 6, Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization 13, Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization 10 and 
Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization 17 were all for no-cost) respectively as discussed below.  
 
Work Authorization No. 1 - was to review prior engineering, surveying, environmental and permitting work provided 
to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA). 
Work Authorization No. 2 - was cancelled by the HCRMA Board.  
Work Authorization No. 3 - was to provide title reports for the State Highway 365 (SH 365) Project. 
Work Authorization No. 4 - was to update the new Executive Director, oversee the update of the Traffic & Revenue 
study, oversee environmental clearance/preliminary design of SH 365 and oversee various other tasks related to SH 
365 and IBTC Projects.  
Work Authorizations No. 5 & 6 - are to continue Program Management for SH 365 and International Bridge Trade 
Corridor (IBTC) Projects.  
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a sketch level Traffic & Revenue Study for 
overweight trucks at the Pharr International Bridge and SH 365.  
Supplemental No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a Value Engineering Study for the SH 365 Project.  
Supplemental No. 3 to Work Authorization No. 6 - was to provide a low level aerial flight and topographic survey for 
the IBTC Project.  
Supplemental No. 4 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to provide updated TRZ parcels, implementation of 
overweight truck corridor, manage Engineers/Surveyors/Geotech for IBTC, local environment clearance of IBTC, 
negotiate final PS&E for SH 365, implement ProjectWise, evaluate Toll Integrator, manage Appraisers/Title 
Companies/ROW Agents, implement GIS for ROW Acquisition and perform value engineering for IBTC. 
Supplemental No. 5 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to provide non-destructive vertical utility locations for design 
of final PS&E for the SH 365 Project. 
Supplemental No. 6 to Work Authorization No. 6 – was to revise the scope of services to include additional 
environmental coordination meeting required by TxDOT, as well as, analysis, meetings, exhibits and estimates for 
intervention in the Cross Valley Project. 
Work Authorization No. 7 – was cancelled by the City of Pharr. 
Work Authorization No. 8 – was to provide continued program management for the SH 365 and Overweight Corridor 
Projects only. 
Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization No. 8 – revise the scope of work to include the IBTC Project and to deduct 
balance of work and close out the Work Authorization No. 8. 
 
 



 
Page 2 
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 18 
December 9, 2014 
 
 
Work Authorization No. 9 – includes program and construction management of SH 365 and IBTC Projects through 
facility opening and operation in 2018. 
Work Authorization No. 10 – includes an update the right of way strip map for the IBTC Project due to value 
engineering changes. 
Work Authorization No. 11 – provides a low level aerial topographic survey for the IBTC Project due to value 
engineering changes. 
Work Authorization No. 12 – updates 2,215 un-coded property parcels in HCRMA Transportation Reinvestment 
Zone Number 2. 
Work Authorization No. 13 – provides an Environmental Assessment Regional Toll Analysis required by the Texas 
Department of Transportation. 
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 13 – provides for a no-cost scope clarification for the Regional Toll 
Analysis. 
Work Authorization No. 14 – provides an Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue Study for SH 365, IBTC and SH 68 
Projects. 
Work Authorization No. 15 – provides a TIGER Grant Application for the SH 365 project. 
Supplemental No. 7 to Work Authorization No. 6 – is proposed to provide additional non-destructive vertical utility 
locations for the SH 365 project. 
Work Authorization No. 16 – provides an H&H Study for the SH 365 and IBTC drainage service areas. 
Work Authorization No. 17 – provides traffic signal warrant projected traffic counts for SH 365 and IBTC Projects. 
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 10 – provides for a no-cost time extension to update the right of way 
strip map for the IBTC Project. 
Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 17 – provides for a no-cost time extension to provide traffic signal 
warrant projected traffic counts for SH 365 and IBTC Projects. 
Work Authorization No. 18 – provides for non-destructive vertical utility locations for the IBTC Project. 
  
Goal 
A no-cost time extension is being proposed for Work Authorization Number 18, which is to perform non-destructive 
utility locations for the IBTC Project. Time is extended to December 31, 2014.  
 
Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization Number 18 is at no-cost to the HCRMA. 
 
Options 
The Board of Directors may disapprove Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 18, however, the 
Supplemental is no-cost and does not increase the contract amount.  
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2014-115 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to 
Work Authorization Number 18 to Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering for a no-
cost time extension for non-destructive utility location is recommended. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2014 – 115 
 

APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO WORK 
AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 18 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING CORPORATION 
FOR A NO-COST TIME EXTENSION TO PROVIDE NON-DESTRUCTIVE 

UTILITY LOCATIONS FOR THE INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE TRADE 
CORRIDOR PROJECT 

 
THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of December, 2014, by the Board of Directors of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2011 the Authority awarded a professional service 
agreement for general engineering and program management services to Dannenbaum 
Engineering Corporation in the maximum payable amount of $5,000,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has subsequently approved Work Authorizations Numbers 1, 

3, 4, 5 and 6, including Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 4,   
Supplemental Numbers 1 & 2 to Work Authorization Number 5, and Supplemental Numbers 1, 
2, 3,4, 5 & 6 to Work Authorization Number 6, in the amounts of $909,960.63, $57,750.00, 
$694,355.85, $769,236.96, $920,263.67, $346,720.31, $1,437,465.41 and $117,054.83 
respectively; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 18, 2013, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 6 to 

Work Authorization Number 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum 
Engineering to revise the scope of service with no increase in the Work Authorization Number 6 
amount; and 

 
WHEREAS,  on January 22, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization Number 

8 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering to continue program 
management for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects in the 
amount of $574,581.59 and increased the maximum payable amount to $5,827,389.25; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 24, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 1 to 

Work Authorization Number 8 to the Professional Service Agreement with Dannenbaum 
Engineering that deducted work in the amount of $114,851.59 for a revised Work Authorization 
amount of $459,730.00 and closed out Work Authorization Number 8; and 

 
 
 



WHEREAS, on February 24, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 
Number 9 for Program and Construction Management of the State Highway 365 and 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects from 2014 to 2018 in the amount of 
$10,340,781.60 and increased the maximum payable amount to $16,053,589.26; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 10 to modify and update the right of way strip map for the International Bridge 
Trade Corridor Project in the amount of $285,984.85; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 11 to provide an updated low level aerial topographic survey for the International 
Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount of $49,034.16; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 12 to provide the Hidalgo County Transportation Reinvestment Zone Number 2 
property ownership update for 2,215 un-coded property parcels in the amount of 
$180,053.72; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 13 to provide an Environmental Assessment Regional Toll Analysis in the 
amount of $89,062.56; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 14 to provide an Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue Study in the amount of 
$397,750.88; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 15 to prepare a TIGER grant application in the amount of $80,256.47; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 21, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 16 to prepare a Hydraulic & Hydrology Study for the State Highway 365 and 
International Bridge Trade Corridor drainage service areas in the amount of $215,571.04; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 17 to prepare Traffic Signal Warrant Projected Traffic Counts for the State 
Highway 365 and International Bridge Trade Corridor Projects in the amount of 
$110,078.54; and 

 
WHEREAS, on August 24, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number 

1 to Work Authorization Number 17 for a no cost time extension to prepare Traffic Signal 
Warrant Projected Traffic Counts for the State Highway 365 and International Bridge 
Trade Corridor Projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 24, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 18 for non-destructive utility locations for the International Bridge Trade 
Corridor Project in the amount of $355,355.20; and 

 



WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 18 for a no-cost time extension 
for non-destructive utility locations for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project; 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization 
Number 18 to the Professional Services Agreement with Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation 
hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Supplemental Number 1 
to Work Authorization Number 18 as approved. 
 

***** 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of Dece,ber, 2014, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
              
      Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
              
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO WORK AUTHORIZTION NUMBER 18  
TO  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH DANNENBAUM ENGINEERING 
CORPORATION DATED OCTOBER 27, 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Contract 

 

 

Hidalgo County  

Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 

 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 

CONSULTANT PROJECT 

 

Engineering Services for any and all 

Services Required for the Development of 

all Projects undertaken by the Authority 

including the Entire Loop Project 
 

SWA No. 1 to WA No. 18 
 

December 05, 2014 

 



SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1 

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 18 

Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 

HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No. 18 

Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation 

Attachment D-2 (SWA 1 to WA 18) – Page 1 

  



Program Management Consultant Services (PMC Project) 

HCRMA Engineering Agreement / Work Authorization No. 18 

Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation 

Attachment D-2 (SWA 1 to WA 18) – Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENT D-2 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1  

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 18 

AGREEMENT FOR  ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of 

“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Program Management Engineering Services” 

hereinafter identified as the “Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 

Authority (Authority), and Dannenbaum Engineering Corporation (the Engineer). 
  
The following terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. 18 are hereby amended as follows: 
 

Part II  The schedule as outlined in Work Authorization No. 18 will be amended to include Exhibit ‘C’ Revised 

Work Schedule to terminate December 31, 2014 (Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 

18). 
 

Part III  The maximum amount payable under this Work Authorization No. 18 will remain at $355,355.20. Fee 

will not be modified. The Engineer’s Estimated Work Authorization No. 18 tasks have been modified with no 

increase in fee. 
 

This Supplemental Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final execution of the parties 

hereto.  All other terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. 18 not hereby amended are to remain in full 

force and effect.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and 

hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

      THE ENGINEER          THE AUTHORITY  
 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Signature)      (Signature) 

__Louis H. Jones, Jr., P.E.________   __Pilar Rodriguez, P.E.___________ 

 (Printed Name)     (Printed Name) 

__Principal_____________________  __Executive Director_____________ 

 (Title)       (Title) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Date)       (Date) 



ID Task Name Start Finish Duration

1 HCRMA - IBTC SURVEY 
CONTRACT

Mon 10/6/14 Mon 
12/22/14

78 days

2 SECTION 2.1 - FROM N. OF 
DONNA LAKE TO I-2

Mon 10/6/14 Fri 12/12/14 68 days

3 2.1 LEVEL C WORK Mon 10/6/14 Fri 10/31/14 26 days
4 2.1 LEVEL B WORK Mon 10/6/14 Mon 12/8/14 64 days
5 2.1 LEVEL A WORK Mon 10/13/14Fri 12/12/14 61 days
6 SECTION 1.1 - FROM 

INTERCHANGE WITH SH 365 
TO BORDER ROAD

Mon 10/6/14 Mon 
12/22/14

78 days

7 1.1 LEVEL C WORK Mon 10/6/14 Fri 10/31/14 26 days
8 1.1 LEVEL B WORK Thu 10/16/14 Thu 12/18/14 64 days
9 1.1 LEVEL A WORK Tue 10/21/14 Mon 12/22/1463 days

10 REMAINDER OF IBTC - FROM
BORDER ROAD TO N. OF 
DONNA LAKE AND FROM 
VALLEY VIEW INTERCHANGE
TO FM 493

Mon 10/6/14 Mon 
12/22/14

78 days

11 R LEVEL C WORK Mon 10/6/14 Fri 10/31/14 26 days
12 R LEVEL B WORK Fri 10/31/14 Mon 12/8/14 39 days
13 R LEVEL A WORK Fri 10/31/14 Mon 12/22/1453 days
14 PROJECT COMPLETE Mon 12/22/14Mon 12/22/140 days

10/6 HCRMA - IBTC SURVEY CONTRACT

10/6 SECTION 2.1 - FROM N. OF DONNA LAKE TO I-2

10/6 2.1 LEVEL C WORK

10/6 2.1 LEVEL B WORK

10/13 2.1 LEVEL A WORK

10/6 SECTION 1.1 - FROM INTERCHANGE WITH SH 365 TO BORDER ROAD

10/6 1.1 LEVEL C WORK

10/16 1.1 LEVEL B WORK

10/21 1.1 LEVEL A WORK

10/6 REMAINDER OF IBTC - FROM BORDER ROAD TO N. OF DONNA LAKE AND FROM VALLEY VIEW INTERCHANGE TO FM 493

10/6 R LEVEL C WORK

10/31 R LEVEL B WORK

10/31 R LEVEL A WORK

12/22 PROJECT COMPLETE

9/28 10/5 10/12 10/19 10/26 11/2 11/9 11/16 11/23 11/30 12/7 12/14 12/21 12/28 1/4 1/11 1/18 1/25 2/1
September October November December January February

2014 2015

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

Deadline

Progress

IBTC SURVEY SERVICES
FROM THE INTERCHANGE WITH SH365 TO I-2

AND FROM THE VALLEY VIEW INTERCHANGE TO FM 493
SWA 1 TO WA 18 - EXHIBIT C

Page 1

Printed: Fri 12/5/14
Update:  11/26/14



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2G 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2G                             
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2014 -116 – APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 1 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH R. 
GUTIERREZ ENGINEERING TO PROVIDE REVISED PARCEL PLATS AND DESCRIPTIONS 
FOR ETT/CROSS VALLEY TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT AS PART OF THE 
INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE TRADE CORRIDOR PROJECT.      

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to Professional Service Agreement 

with R. Gutierrez Engineering to provide revised parcel tract platting for 37 existing parcels for  
the ETT/Cross Valley Project acquisition and 58 parcels due to TxDOT clarification on control of 
acess lines as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount of   
$34,152.00.             

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:        X   Yes           No          N/A   Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 
 Proposed Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 1: 
 Revised Parcel Tract Platting within the IBTC Project  $34,152.00 
    
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2014-116 - Approval of Supplemental 

Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with R. 
Gutierrez Engineering to provide revised parcel plats and descriptions for ETT/Cross  
Valley Transmission Line Project as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project 
is recommended in the amount of $34,152.00        
 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 
 
 
 
 



 

To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: December 9, 2014 

Re: Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 with 
R. Gutierrez Engineering for Revised Parcel Platting for the IBTC Project  

Background 
At the October 16, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors approved the use and members of the 
Technical Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list for Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical 
services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC) Project.  
 
At the November 20, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors authorized staff to negotiate 
professional service agreements with 11 surveying firms. 
 
Additionally, on March 19, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized early acquisition of right of way for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project as part of the Agreed Order between ETT – Cross Valley Project and the 
HCRMA. 
 
On June 18, 2014, the Board of Directors approved Work Authorization No. 1 to provide parcel platting for 49 tracts 
within the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. The work is necessary to acquire the right of way agreed 
upon by the HCRMA and ETT. 
 
Goal 
Staff is proposing Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to provide revised parcel platting for 37 
existing tracts due to an adjustment of the roadway alignment to accommodate both ETT and the Donna Irrigation 
District as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. Additionally, 58 parcels were also revised due to 
TxDOT clarification for control of access lines. 
  
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 is proposed to perform the work in the amount of 
$34,152.00. 
 
Options 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 may be disapproved by the Board of Directors.  
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2014-116 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to 
Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service agreement with R. Gutierrez Engineering to 
provide revised parcel plats and descriptions for the ETT/Cross Valley Transmission Line Project as part of 
the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount of $34,152.00 is recommended. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2014 – 116 
 

APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO WORK 
AUTHORIZATON NUMBER 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 
AGREEMENT WITH R GUTIERREZ ENGINEERING TO PROVIDE 
REVISED PARCEL PLATS AND DESCRIPTIONS FOR ETT/CROSS 

VALLEY TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT AS PART OF THE 
INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE TRADE CORRIDOR PROJECT 

 
THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of December, 2014 by the Board of 
Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority 
created pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 
and around Hidalgo County;  

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012-04, 

which created the Technical Committee, comprised of senior level engineers and 
professional from various communities and agencies in the jurisdiction of the Authority, 
to serve to advise the Board on procurement and consultant work products; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2012-04 also authorized the Executive Committee to 

determine the size, structure and scope of the Technical Committee, identify candidates 
and issue requests for participation; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2013-41 authorized the use and structure of the Technical 

Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list to the Board of Directors for the 
Statements of Qualifications for the International Bride Trade Corridor Project for 
Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Technical Committee has rated and ranked the Statements of 

Qualifications for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project for Surveying Services 
and recommended that HCRMA staff be authorized to negotiate with all qualified 
Surveying Firms to establish a surveying pool for the project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized staff to 

negotiate professional services agreements with Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, 
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, 
Melden & Hunt, DOS Land Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying 
Services and Fulcrum Consulting Services; and 

 
 



WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority awarded professional service 
agreements to Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, 
Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, Melden & Hunt, DOS Land 
Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum 
Consulting Services for surveying services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor 
Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with R Gutierrez Engineering to 
prepare 49 parcel plats and descriptions in the amount of $75,560.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve Supplemental 
Number to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with R. 
Gutierrez Engineering to revise 37 existing tracts due to an adjustment of the roadway 
alignment to accommodate both ETT and the Donna Irrigation District and revise 58 
parcels due to TxDOT clarification for control of access lines as part of the International 
Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount $34,152.00;  

 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves Supplemental Number 1 to Work 
Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreements for Surveying Services 
with R Gutierrez Engineering, hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Supplemental 
Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Services Agreement for 
Surveying Services with R Gutierrez Engineering as approved.  
 

***** 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of 
December, 2014, at which meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
      Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
             
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
 

Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 
to 

Professional Service Agreements  
with 

R Gutierrez Engineering 
for 

Surveying Services 
for the 

International Bridge Trade Corridor 
 

 



 

Contract 

 

 

Hidalgo County  

Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 

 

SURVEYING SERVICES IBTC 

Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and 

from the ValleyView Interchange to 

FM 493 

 

 

 

SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 

 

December 05, 2014 

R. Gutierrez Engineering Corporation 



SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for R. Gutierrez Corporation for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Attachment D-2 – Page 1 

 

ATTACHMENT D-2 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION  NO. __1__ 

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.  __1__ 

AGREEMENT FOR  SURVEYING SERVICES 
 
THIS SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of 

“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services” hereinafter identified as the 

“Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and R. 

Gutierrez Corporation (the Surveyor). 

  

The following terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. __1__ are hereby amended as follows: 

 

Exhibit C 

Work Schedule is amended to extend termination date for Work Authorization No. 1 as noted within the 

attached Exhibit C at the close of business on January 31, 2015. 

 

Exhibit D 

Fee Schedule/Budget is amended as noted in Exhibit D for a total amount of $34,152.00, bringing the revised 

Work Authorization No. 1 to $109,720.00. 

 

Exhibit H-2 

Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement is amended as noted in Exhibit H-2. 

 

 

This Supplemental Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final execution of the parties 

hereto.  All other terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. __1__ not hereby amended are to remain in 

full force and effect.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and 

hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

      THE SURVEYOR                  THE AUTHORITY  
     

______________________________   ______________________________ 

       (Signature)       (Signature) 

              Ramiro Gutierrez                                                                           . 

  (Printed Name)             (Printed Name) 

                President                       .                                                        . 

        (Title)           (Title) 

______________________________   ______________________________ 

        (Date)           (Date) 

 
 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

Exhibit D  Fee Schedule/Budget 

Exhibit H-2  Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 



EXHIBIT D 
FEE SCHEDULE BUDGET 

 

SWA No. 1 to WA  No. 1 to 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for R. Gutierrez Corporation for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Exhibit D – Page 1 

 

 



EXHIBIT 'D'

Prime: R. Gutierrez Engineering Fee Schedule/Budget for

Survey Services for the HCRMA Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA)

SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 Supplemental Work Authorization No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 1

Schedule Duration: 01/31/2015 IBTC Surveying Services

SURVEY SERVICES

DESCRIPTION

Principal / Sr. 

Manager / Senior 

survey Manager

Project Surveyor 

(RPLS)

Senior Survey 

Tech / SIT
Survey Technician CADD Operator Clerical / Admin. Abstractor

1-Person Survey 

Crew

2-Person Survey 

Crew

3-Person Survey 

Crew

4-Person Survey 

Crew

Total

Labor Hrs.
Remarks

 Task

Cost 

Revised Parcels due to IBTC ROW Modifications: EQ-T-11 thru EQ-T-19 & AAQ-

262 (10 Parcels) within Quiet Village Subdiv. for ETT/AEP Project ROW

Research 0  $                                   -   

Field Work 0  $                                   -   

CAD Work 4 32 36  $                        3,960.00 

Revised Parcels due to IBTC ROW Modifications: AAQ-238 thru AAQ-247 (10 

Parcels) South of Quiet Village Subdiv. for ETT/AEP Project ROW

Research 0  $                                   -   

Field Work 8 8  $                        1,344.00 

CAD Work 5 40 45  $                        4,950.00 

Revised Parcels due to ROW Acquisition Requirements to Split Existing Parcels 

in Two: 248 A&B, 251 A&B & 252 A&B within Quiet Village Subdiv. for ETT/AEP 

Project ROW

(6 Parcels)

Research 0  $                                   -   

Field Work 6 6  $                        1,008.00 

CAD Work 4 32 36  $                        3,960.00 

Research 0  $                                   -   

Field Work 0  $                                   -   

CAD Work 2 16 18  $                        1,980.00 

Additional Parcels due to IBTC ROW Modifications: T-100 thru T-110 (11 Parcels) 

within Quiet Village Subdiv. for ETT/AEP Project ROW

Research 0  $                                   -   

Field Work 40 40  $                        6,720.00 

CAD Work 22 66 88  $                      10,230.00 

Subtotal 0 37 186 0 0 0 0 0 0 54 0 277 34,152.00$                      

Total Manhours by Classification 0 37 186 0 0 0 0 0 0 54 0 277

Contract Hourly Rate by Classification 200.00$                    150.00$                 105.00$                 75.00$                   65.00$                   50.00$                   65.00$                   80.00$                   130.00$                 168.00$                 198.00$                 

Total Fee by Classification -$                          5,550.00$              19,530.00$            -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       9,072.00$              -$                       34,152.00$              

CHECK (MHRs):

% Utilization by Over 6 months 0.00% 3.56% 17.92% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 277

% of Total Labor Hours 0.00% 13.36% 67.15% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% CHECK (LABOR):

% of Total Labor Cost 0.00% 16.25% 57.19% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 34,152.00$                

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST 34,152.00$                      

DIRECT EXPENSES Rate Unit Amount Total

Mileage 0.56$                         Mile 0 -$                       -$                           

Photocopies 0.10$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

Blueline/Blackline Prints 2.00$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

Deed/Copies 1.00$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

Certified Deed Copies 2.00$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

Mylar (11x17) 3.00$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

Mylar (22x34) 6.00$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES -$                       -$                                  

SPECIAL SERVICES FEE (SUBCONSULTANTS)  DBE Participation 

0.00%

Name Task(s) Summary

TOTAL SPECIAL SERVICES FEE (SUBCONSULTANTS) -$                                  

GRAND TOTAL 34,152.00$                      

LIMITS:  From the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 (As-Assigned by the HCRMA)

Removed Access Control Lines Parcels: EQ-T-1 thru EQ-T-24 and Parcels AAQ-T-

1 thru AAQ-T-10 and Parcels AAQ-238 thru AAQ-262 (58 parcels)  due to TxDOT 

Clarification

0010 IBTC\01 Contract Admin\0010 RGEC\05 Contract\WA No. 1\SWA 1 to WA 1\04 Exhibit D - Fee Schedule SWA1 to WA1-RGEC-120814 (PMC)
Exhibit D 

 12/8/2014



SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for R. Gutierrez Corporation for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Exhibit H-2 – Page 1 

  

EXHIBIT H-2 

Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

This commitment agreement is subject to the award and receipt of a signed contract from the Hidalgo County 

Regional Mobility Authority (Authority).  NOTE: Attachment H-2 is required to be attached to each contract 

that does not include work authorizations.  Attachment H-2 is required to be attached with each work 

authorization.  Attachment H-2 is also required to be attached to each supplemental work authorization.  If 

DBE/HUB Subproviders are used, the form must be completed and signed.  If no DBE/HUB Subproviders are 

used, indicate with “N/A” on this line: __________ and attach with the work authorization or supplemental 

work authorization.   

Contract #:              Assigned Goal: 0.0%   Prime Provider R. Gutierrez Corporation                 

Work Authorization (WA)#:       1     WA Amount:         $75,568.00             Date:      

Supplemental Work Authorization (SWA) #:      1       to WA #:        1               SWA Amount:         $34,152.00                   

Revised WA Amount:     $109,720.00                     

Description of Work 
(List by category of work or task description.  Attach additional pages, if 

necessary.) 

Dollar Amount 

(For each category of work or task 

description shown.) 

Survey $34,152.00 

FC  $0 

Total Commitment Amount (Including all additional pages.) $0 

IMPORTANT: The signatures of the prime and the DBE/HUB and Second Tier Subprovider, if any (both DBE and Non-

DBE) and the total commitment amount must always be on the same page. 

Provider Name:  R. Gutierrez Corporation 

Address:  130 E. Park Avenue 

                 Pharr, Tx 78577 

VID Number: 17417379595 

PH: (956) 381-0981; FX: (     )     -       

Email: rgutierrez@rgec.net.com  

 

Name:  Ramiro Gutierrez                           

(Please Print) 

Title: President                                           

 

       

Signature                             Date 

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 

Subprovider Name:  

VID Number:  

Address:  

PH: (XXX) XXX-XXXX; FX: (XXX) XXX-XXXX 

Email: 

 

Name:                                               

(Please Print) 

Title:                                             

 

       

Signature                             Date 

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 

Subprovider Name:  

VID Number:  

Address: 

PH:                   FX: 

Email: 

 

Name:                                               

(Please Print) 

Title:                                             

 

       

Signature                             Date 

 

mailto:rgutierrez@rgec.net.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2H 



 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2H                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED         12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE      12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2014 -117 – APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO  

THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH R. GUTIERREZ ENGINEERING TO  
INCREASE THE MAXIMUM PAYABLE AMOUNT FOR SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO  
WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 1.         

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement  

with R. Gutierrez Engineering to increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental  
Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 in the amount of $34,152.00 for a revised maximum  
payable amount of $109,720.00.           

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A   Funding Source:   VRF Bond   

 
Approved maximum payable fee       $75,568.00   
Approved Work Authorizations 1    $75,568.00 

 Maximum fee balance      $         0.00 
 

 Proposed Supplemental No. 1 to PSA: 
 
 Supplemental Number 1 to PSA     $  34,152.00 
 Revised Maximum Payable Amount         $109,720.00  
  
       
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2014-117 - Approval of Supplemental 

Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with R. Gutierrez Engineering to   
increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 1 to Work   
Authorization Number 1 in the amount of $34,152.00 for a revised maximum payable  
amount of $109,720.00.           

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved           None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None  
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved          None 



 

Memorandum 
To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: December 9, 2014 

Re: Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement 
with R. Gutierrez Engineering  

Background 
At the October 16, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors approved the use and members of the 
Technical Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list for Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical 
services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC) Project.  
 
At the November 20, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors authorized staff to negotiate 
professional service agreements with 11 surveying firms. 
 
Additionally, on March 19, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized early acquisition of right of way for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project as part of the Agreed Order between ETT – Cross Valley Project and the 
HCRMA. 
 
On June 18, 2014, the Board of Directors approved Work Authorization No. 1 to provide parcel platting for 49 tracts 
within the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. The work is necessary to acquire the right of way agreed 
upon by the HCRMA and ETT. 
 
Goal 
Staff is proposing Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to provide revised parcel platting for 37 
existing tracts due to an adjustment of the roadway alignment to accommodate both ETT and the Donna Irrigation 
District as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. Additionally, 58 parcels were also revised due to 
TxDOT clarification for control of access lines. 
 
Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement is proposed to increase the maximum payable 
amount by $34,152.00 for a revised maximum payable amount of $109,720.00. 
 
Options 
Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement may be disapproved by the Board of Directors.  
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2014-111 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to the 
Professional Service agreement with R. Gutierrez Engineering to increase the maximum payable amount for 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1in the amount of $34,152.00 for a revised maximum 
payable amount of $109,720.00 is recommended. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2014 – 116 
 

APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO THE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH R GUTIERREZ 

ENGINEERING TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM PAYABLE 
AMOUNT FOR SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO WORK 

AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 1 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of December, 2014 by the Board of 
Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority 
created pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 
and around Hidalgo County;  

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012-04, 

which created the Technical Committee, comprised of senior level engineers and 
professional from various communities and agencies in the jurisdiction of the Authority, 
to serve to advise the Board on procurement and consultant work products; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2012-04 also authorized the Executive Committee to 

determine the size, structure and scope of the Technical Committee, identify candidates 
and issue requests for participation; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2013-41 authorized the use and structure of the Technical 

Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list to the Board of Directors for the 
Statements of Qualifications for the International Bride Trade Corridor Project for 
Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Technical Committee has rated and ranked the Statements of 

Qualifications for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project for Surveying Services 
and recommended that HCRMA staff be authorized to negotiate with all qualified 
Surveying Firms to establish a surveying pool for the project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized staff to 

negotiate professional services agreements with Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, 
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, 
Melden & Hunt, DOS Land Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying 
Services and Fulcrum Consulting Services; and 

 
 



WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority awarded professional service 
agreements to Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, 
Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, Melden & Hunt, DOS Land 
Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum 
Consulting Services for surveying services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor 
Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with R Gutierrez Engineering to 
prepare 49 parcel plats and descriptions in the amount of $75,560.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 15, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental Number to 
Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with R. Gutierrez 
Engineering to revise 37 existing tracts due to an adjustment of the roadway alignment to 
accommodate both ETT and the Donna Irrigation District and revise 58 parcels due to 
TxDOT clarification for control of access lines as part of the International Bridge Trade 
Corridor Project in the amount of $34,152.00; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve Supplemental 
Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with R. Gutierrez Engineering to 
increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 1 to Work 
Authorization Number 1 in the amount of $34,152.00 for a revised maximum payable 
amount of $109,720.00;  

 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional 
Service Agreements for Surveying Services with R Gutierrez Engineering, hereto 
attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Supplemental 
Number 1 to the Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services with R 
Gutierrez Engineering as approved.  
 

***** 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of 
December, 2014, at which meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
      Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
             
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
 

Supplemental Number 1 to 
Professional Service Agreements  

with 
R Gutierrez Engineering 

for 
Surveying Services 

for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor 

 
 



 

Contract 

 

 

Hidalgo County  

Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 

 

SURVEYING SERVICES IBTC 

Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and 

from the ValleyView Interchange to 

FM 493 

 

 

 

SA No. 1 to MAIN CONTRACT 

 

December 05, 2014 

R. Gutierrez Engineering Corporation 



Supplemental No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for R. Gutierrez Corporation for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Attachment D – Page 1 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO.  1 

 

  



Supplemental No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for R. Gutierrez Corporation for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Attachment D – Page 2 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. _ 1 _ 

TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING / DESIGN SERVICES 
 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO 1 TO MAIN CONTRACT is made pursuant to the terms and 

conditions of “Article III Compensation and Attachment A General Provisions Section 6 Supplemental 

Agreements of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Design Services” hereinafter 

identified as the “Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

(Authority), and R. Gutierrez Corporation (the Surveyor). 

  

The following terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby amended as follows: 

 

Article III Compensation  

Article III Compensation shall be amended to increase the amount payable under this contract from $75,568.00 

to $109,720.00 for a total increase of $34,153.00 due SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 for revision of parcels and 

additional row of takings in Quiet Village. 

 

 

This Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the Main Contract shall become effective on the date of final execution 

of the parties hereto.  All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not hereby amended are to remain in full 

force and effect. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Agreement is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby 

accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

 

 

      THE ENGINEER          THE AUTHORITY  
 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Signature)      (Signature) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Printed Name)     (Printed Name) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Title)       (Title) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Date)       (Date) 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2I 



 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

         
AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                    2I                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2014 -118 – APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 1 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
QUINTANILLA, HEADLEY & ASSOCIATES TO PROVIDE REVISED PARCEL PLATS AND 
DESCRIPTIONS FOR ETT/CROSS VALLEY TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT AS PART OF 
THE INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE TRADE CORRIDOR PROJECT.      

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to Professional Service Agreement 

with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates to provide revised parcel tract platting for 11 existing  
parcels for the ETT/Cross Valley Project acquisition and 11 parcels due to TxDOT clarification on 
control of acess lines as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount of  
$17,053.00.             

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:        X   Yes           No          N/A   Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 
 Proposed Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 1: 
 Revised Parcel Tract Platting within the IBTC Project  $17,053.00 
    
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2014-118 - Approval of Supplemental 

Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with  
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates to provide revised parcel plats and descriptions for  
ETT/Cross Valley Transmission Line Project as part of the International Bridge Trade  
Corridor Project is recommended in the amount of $17,053.00      
 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 
 
 
 
 



 

To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: December 9, 2014 

Re: Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 with 
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates for Revised Parcel Platting for the IBTC 
Project  

Background 
At the October 16, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors approved the use and members of the 
Technical Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list for Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical 
services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC) Project.  
 
At the November 20, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors authorized staff to negotiate 
professional service agreements with 11 surveying firms. 
 
Additionally, on March 19, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized early acquisition of right of way for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project as part of the Agreed Order between ETT – Cross Valley Project and the 
HCRMA. 
 
On June 18, 2014, the Board of Directors approved Work Authorization No. 1 to provide parcel platting for 13 tracts 
within the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. The work is necessary to acquire the right of way agreed 
upon by the HCRMA and ETT. 
 
Goal 
Staff is proposing Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to provide revised parcel platting for 5 
existing tracts due to an adjustment of the roadway alignment to accommodate both ETT and the Donna Irrigation 
District as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. Additionally, 11 parcels were also revised due to 
TxDOT clarification for control of access lines. 
 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 is proposed to perform the work in the amount of 
$17,053.00. 
 
Options 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 may be disapproved by the Board of Directors.  
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2014-116 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to 
Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service agreement with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates 
to provide revised parcel plats and descriptions for the ETT/Cross Valley Transmission Line Project as part 
of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount of $17,053.00 is recommended. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2014 – 118 
 

APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO WORK 
AUTHORIZATON NUMBER 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 
AGREEMENT WITH QUINTANILLA, HEADLEY & ASSOCIATES 

TO PROVIDE REVISED PARCEL PLATS AND DESCRIPTIONS FOR 
ETT/CROSS VALLEY TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT AS PART 

OF THE INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE TRADE CORRIDOR PROJECT 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of December, 2014 by the Board of 
Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority 
created pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 
and around Hidalgo County;  

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012-04, 

which created the Technical Committee, comprised of senior level engineers and 
professional from various communities and agencies in the jurisdiction of the Authority, 
to serve to advise the Board on procurement and consultant work products; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2012-04 also authorized the Executive Committee to 

determine the size, structure and scope of the Technical Committee, identify candidates 
and issue requests for participation; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2013-41 authorized the use and structure of the Technical 

Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list to the Board of Directors for the 
Statements of Qualifications for the International Bride Trade Corridor Project for 
Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Technical Committee has rated and ranked the Statements of 

Qualifications for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project for Surveying Services 
and recommended that HCRMA staff be authorized to negotiate with all qualified 
Surveying Firms to establish a surveying pool for the project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized staff to 

negotiate professional services agreements with Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, 
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, 
Melden & Hunt, DOS Land Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying 
Services and Fulcrum Consulting Services; and 

 



WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority awarded professional service 
agreements to Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, 
Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, Melden & Hunt, DOS Land 
Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum 
Consulting Services for surveying services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor 
Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates 
to prepare 13 parcel plats and descriptions in the amount of $25,111.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve 

Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service 
Agreement with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates to prepare revised parcel platting for 
5 existing tracts due to an adjustment of the roadway alignment to accommodate both 
ETT and the Donna Irrigation District and revise 11 parcels due to TxDOT clarification 
for control of access lines in the amount of $17,053.00;  

 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves Supplemental Number 1 to Work 
Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreements for Surveying Services 
with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Supplemental 
Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Services Agreement for 
Surveying Services with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates as approved.  
 

***** 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of 
December, 2014, at which meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
      Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
             
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
 

Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 
to 

Professional Service Agreements  
with 

Quintanilla, Headley & Associates 
for 

Surveying Services 
for the 

International Bridge Trade Corridor 
 

 



 

Contract 

 

 

Hidalgo County  

Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 

 

SURVEYING SERVICES IBTC 

Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and 

from the ValleyView Interchange to 

FM 493 

 

 

 

SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 

 

December 05, 2014 

Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc. 



SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc. for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Attachment D-2 – Page 1 

 

ATTACHMENT D-2 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION  NO. __1__ 

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.  __1__ 

AGREEMENT FOR  SURVEYING SERVICES 

 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of 

“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services” hereinafter identified as the 

“Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and 

Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc. (the Surveyor). 

  

The following terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. __1__ are hereby amended as follows: 

 

Exhibit C 

Work Schedule is amended to extend termination date for Work Authorization No. 1 close of business on 

January 31, 2015. 
 

Exhibit D 

Fee Schedule/Budget is amended as noted in Exhibit D for a total amount of $17,053.00, bringing the revised 

Work Authorization No. 1 amount to $42,164.00. 
 

Exhibit H-2 

Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement is amended as noted in Exhibit H-2. 

 

 

This Supplemental Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final execution of the parties 

hereto.  All other terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. __1__ not hereby amended are to remain in 

full force and effect.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and 

hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

      THE SURVEYOR                  THE AUTHORITY  
     

______________________________   ______________________________ 

       (Signature)       (Signature) 

              Alfonso Quintanilla                                                                           . 

  (Printed Name)             (Printed Name) 

                President                       .                                                        . 

        (Title)           (Title) 

______________________________   ______________________________ 

        (Date)           (Date) 

 

 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

Exhibit D  Fee Schedule/Budget 

Exhibit H-2  Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 
 



EXHIBIT D 
FEE SCHEDULE BUDGET 

 

SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 to 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc.  for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Exhibit D – Page 1 

 

 



EXHIBIT 'D'

Prime: Quintanilla, Headley & Associates Fee Schedule/Budget for

Survey Services for the HCRMA Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA)

SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 Supplemental Work Authorization No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 1

Schedule Duration: 01/31/2015 IBTC Surveying Services

SURVEY SERVICES

DESCRIPTION

Principal / Sr. Manager 

/ Senior survey 

Manager

Project Surveyor 

(RPLS)

Senior Survey 

Tech / SIT

Survey 

Technician
CADD Operator Clerical / Admin. Abstractor

1-Person Survey 

Crew

2-Person Survey 

Crew

3-Person Survey 

Crew

4-Person Survey 

Crew

Total

Labor Hrs.
Remarks

 Task

Cost 

Revised Parcels due to IBTC ROW Modifications: 263 thru 268 (6 parcels 

north of Quiet Village Subdiv.), 298P1, 298P2, 299P1, 299P2 & 300 (5 parcels 

north fo Red River Subdiv.) for ETT/AEP Project ROW

Research 0  $                                   -   

Field Work 7 14 16 37  $                        4,788.00 

CAD Work 22 22 56 34 134  $                      10,290.00 

Removed Access Control Lines Parcels: Parcel 263 thru 268, 298P1, and 

298P2, 299P1, 299P2 & 300 (11 Parcels) due to TxDOT Clarification

Research 0  $                                   -   

Field Work 0  $                                   -   

CAD Work 3 5 10 10 28  $                        1,975.00 

Subtotal 0 32 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 16 0 199 17,053.00$                      

Total Manhours by Classification 0 32 0 41 66 44 0 0 0 16 0 199

Contract Hourly Rate by Classification 200.00$                          150.00$                 105.00$                 75.00$                  65.00$                50.00$                  65.00$               80.00$                 130.00$                168.00$                0

Total Fee by Classification -$                                4,800.00$              -$                       3,075.00$            4,290.00$           2,200.00$            -$                   -$                     -$                      2,688.00$            17,053.00$              

CHECK (MHRs):

% Utilization by Over 6 months 0.00% 3.08% 0.00% 3.95% 6.36% 4.24% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 183

% of Total Labor Hours 0.00% 16.08% 0.00% 20.60% 33.17% 22.11% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% CHECK (LABOR):

% of Total Labor Cost 0.00% 28.15% 0.00% 18.03% 25.16% 12.90% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 17,053.00$                

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST 17,053.00$                      

DIRECT EXPENSES Rate Unit Amount Total

Mileage 0.56$                              Mile 0 -$                      -$                           

Photocopies 0.10$                              Sheet 0 -$                      -$                           

Blueline/Blackline Prints 2.00$                              Sheet 0 -$                      -$                           

Deed/Copies 1.00$                              Sheet 0 -$                      -$                           

Certified Deed Copies 2.00$                              Sheet 0 -$                      -$                           

Mylar (11x17) 3.00$                              Sheet 0 -$                      -$                           

Mylar (22x34) 6.00$                              Sheet 0 -$                      -$                           

TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES -$                      -$                                  

SPECIAL SERVICES FEE (SUBCONSULTANTS)  DBE Participation 

0.00%

Name Task(s) Summary

TOTAL SPECIAL SERVICES FEE (SUBCONSULTANTS) -$                                  

GRAND TOTAL 17,053.00$                      

LIMITS:  from Proposed SH365 Interchange and FM493 to Expressway 83 (I-2)

0010 IBTC\01 Contract Admin\0010 QHA\05 Contract\WA No. 1\SWA 1 to WA 1\05 Exhibit D - Fee Schedule SWA1 to WA1-QHA Exhibit D 12/8/2014



SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 to 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc.  for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Exhibit H-2 – Page 1 

  

EXHIBIT H-2 

Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

This commitment agreement is subject to the award and receipt of a signed contract from the Hidalgo County 

Regional Mobility Authority (Authority).  NOTE: Attachment H-2 is required to be attached to each contract 

that does not include work authorizations.  Attachment H-2 is required to be attached with each work 

authorization.  Attachment H-2 is also required to be attached to each supplemental work authorization.  If 

DBE/HUB Subproviders are used, the form must be completed and signed.  If no DBE/HUB Subproviders are 

used, indicate with “N/A” on this line: __________ and attach with the work authorization or supplemental 

work authorization.   

Contract #:              Assigned Goal: 0.0%   Prime Provider Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc.                 

Work Authorization (WA)#:       1     WA Amount:         $25,111.00             Date:       

Supplemental Work Authorization (SWA) #:     1     to WA #:       1              SWA Amount:      $17,053.00                      

Revised WA Amount:     $42,164.00                     

Description of Work 
(List by category of work or task description.  Attach additional pages, if 

necessary.) 

Dollar Amount 

(For each category of work or task 

description shown.) 

Survey (Revise Parcels) $17,053.00 

FC  $0 

Total Commitment Amount (Including all additional pages.) $0 

IMPORTANT: The signatures of the prime and the DBE/HUB and Second Tier Subprovider, if any (both DBE and Non-

DBE) and the total commitment amount must always be on the same page. 

Provider Name: Quintanilla, Headley and 

Associates, Inc. 

Address:  124 E. Stubbs 

                 Edinburg, Tx 78539 

VID Number: 17426481671 

PH: (956) 381-6480; FX: (     )     -       

Email: alfonsoq@qhaengineering.com  

 

Name:  Alfonso Quintanilla                     

(Please Print) 

Title: President                                           

       

Signature                             Date 

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 

Subprovider Name: CVQ Land Surveyors, LLC 

VID Number: 12601525863 

Address: 517 Beaumont St., McAllen, Texas 78501 

PH: (956) 618-1551; FX: (956) 618-1547 

Email: cvq@cvqls.com  

 

Name:  Carlos Vasquez                              

(Please Print) 

Title:  President                                      

 

       

Signature                             Date 

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 

Subprovider Name:  

VID Number:  

Address:  

PH:                     ; FX:  

Email:  

 

Name:                                               

(Please Print) 

Title:                                                

 

       

Signature                             Date 

 

mailto:alfonsoq@qhaengineering.com
mailto:cvq@cvqls.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2J 



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2J                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED         12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE      12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2014 -119 – APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO  

THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH QUINTANILLA, HEADLEY &   
ASSOCIATES TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM PAYABLE AMOUNT FOR SUPPLEMENTAL  
NUMBER 1 TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 1.       

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement  

with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates to increase the maximum payable amount for   
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 in the amount of $17,053.00 for a  
revised maximum payable amount of $42,164.00.         

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A   Funding Source:   VRF Bond   

 
Approved maximum payable fee       $25,111.00   
Approved Work Authorizations 1    $25,111.00 

 Maximum fee balance      $         0.00 
 

 Proposed Supplemental No. 1 to PSA: 
 
 Supplemental Number 1 to PSA     $  17,053.00 
 Revised Maximum Payable Amount         $  42,164.00  
  
       
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2014-119 - Approval of Supplemental 

Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates  
to increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 1 to Work   
Authorization Number 1 in the amount of $17,053.00 for a revised maximum payable  
amount of $42,164.00.           

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved           None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None  
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved          None 



 

Memorandum 
To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: December 9, 2014 

Re: Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement 
with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates  

Background 
At the October 16, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors approved the use and members of the 
Technical Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list for Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical 
services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC) Project.  
 
At the November 20, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors authorized staff to negotiate 
professional service agreements with 11 surveying firms. 
 
Additionally, on March 19, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized early acquisition of right of way for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project as part of the Agreed Order between ETT – Cross Valley Project and the 
HCRMA. 
 
On June 18, 2014, the Board of Directors approved Work Authorization No. 1 to provide parcel platting for 13 tracts 
within the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. The work is necessary to acquire the right of way agreed 
upon by the HCRMA and ETT. 
 
Goal 
Staff is proposing Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to provide revised parcel platting for 5 
existing tracts due to an adjustment of the roadway alignment to accommodate both ETT and the Donna Irrigation 
District as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. Additionally, 11 parcels were also revised due to 
TxDOT clarification for control of access lines. 
 
Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement is proposed to increase the maximum payable 
amount by $17,053.00 for a revised maximum payable amount of $42,164.00. 
 
Options 
Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement may be disapproved by the Board of Directors.  
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2014-119 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to the 
Professional Service agreement with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates to increase the maximum payable 
amount for Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1in the amount of $17,053.00 for a 
revised maximum payable amount of $42,164.00 is recommended. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2014 – 119 
 

APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO THE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH QUINTANILLA, 

HEADLEY & ASSOCIATES TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM 
PAYABLE AMOUNT FOR SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO WORK 

AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 1 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of December, 2014 by the Board of 
Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority 
created pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 
and around Hidalgo County;  

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012-04, 

which created the Technical Committee, comprised of senior level engineers and 
professional from various communities and agencies in the jurisdiction of the Authority, 
to serve to advise the Board on procurement and consultant work products; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2012-04 also authorized the Executive Committee to 

determine the size, structure and scope of the Technical Committee, identify candidates 
and issue requests for participation; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2013-41 authorized the use and structure of the Technical 

Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list to the Board of Directors for the 
Statements of Qualifications for the International Bride Trade Corridor Project for 
Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Technical Committee has rated and ranked the Statements of 

Qualifications for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project for Surveying Services 
and recommended that HCRMA staff be authorized to negotiate with all qualified 
Surveying Firms to establish a surveying pool for the project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized staff to 

negotiate professional services agreements with Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, 
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, 
Melden & Hunt, DOS Land Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying 
Services and Fulcrum Consulting Services; and 

 
 



WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority awarded professional service 
agreements to Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, 
Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, Melden & Hunt, DOS Land 
Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum 
Consulting Services for surveying services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor 
Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates 
to prepare 13 parcel plats and descriptions in the amount of $25,111.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 15, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental 

Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with 
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates to prepare revised parcel platting for 5 existing tracts 
due to an adjustment of the roadway alignment to accommodate both ETT and the Donna 
Irrigation District and revise 11 parcels due to TxDOT clarification for control of access 
lines in the amount of $17,053.00; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve 
Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Quintanilla, 
Headley & Associates to increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental 
Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 in the amount of $17,053.00 for a revised 
maximum payable amount of $42,164.00;  

 
 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves Supplemental Number 1 tto the Professional 
Service Agreements for Surveying Services with Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, 
hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Supplemental 
Number 1 to the Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services with 
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates as approved.  
 

***** 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of 
December, 2014, at which meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
      Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
             
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
 

Supplemental Number 1 to 
Professional Service Agreements  

with 
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates 

for 
Surveying Services 

for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor 

 
 



 

Contract 

 

 

Hidalgo County  

Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 

 

SURVEYING SERVICES IBTC 

Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and 

from the ValleyView Interchange to 

FM 493 

 

 

 

SA No. 1 to Main Contract 

 

December 05, 2014 

Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc. 



Supplemental No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc. for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Attachment D – Page 1 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO.  1 

 

  



Supplemental No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc. for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Attachment D – Page 2 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. _ 1 _ 

TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING / DESIGN SERVICES 
 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO 1 TO MAIN CONTRACT is made pursuant to the terms and 

conditions of “Article III Compensation and Attachment A General Provisions Section 6 Supplemental 

Agreements of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Design Services” hereinafter 

identified as the “Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

(Authority), and Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Inc. (the Surveyor). 

  

The following terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby amended as follows: 

 

 

 

Article III Compensation  

Article III Compensation shall be amended to increase the amount payable under this contract from $25,111.00 

to $42,164.00 for a total increase of $17,053.00 due SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 for revision of parcels. 

 

 

 

This Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the Main Contract shall become effective on the date of final execution 

of the parties hereto.  All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not hereby amended are to remain in full 

force and effect. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Agreement is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby 

accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

 

 

      THE ENGINEER          THE AUTHORITY  
 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Signature)      (Signature) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Printed Name)     (Printed Name) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Title)       (Title) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Date)       (Date) 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 2K 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                    2K                             
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2014 -120 – APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 1 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
MELDEN AND HUNT TO PROVIDE REVISED PARCEL PLATS AND DESCRIPTIONS FOR 
ETT/CROSS VALLEY TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT AS PART OF THE INTERNATIONAL 
BRIDGE TRADE CORRIDOR PROJECT.         

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of Supplemental 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to Professional Service Agreement 

with Melden and Hunt to provide revised parcel tract platting for 6 existing parcels for the  
ETT/Cross Valley Project acquisition as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project in 
the amount of $4,842.00.           

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:        X   Yes           No          N/A   Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 
 Proposed Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 1: 
 Revised Parcel Tract Platting within the IBTC Project  $4,842.00 
    
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2014-118 - Approval of Supplemental 

Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with  
Melden and Hunt to provide revised parcel plats and descriptions for ETT/Cross Valley  
Transmission Line Project as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project is  
recommended in the amount of $4,842.00         
 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 
 
 
 
 



 

To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: December 9, 2014 

Re: Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 with 
Melden and Hunt for Revised Parcel Platting for the IBTC Project  

Background 
At the October 16, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors approved the use and members of the 
Technical Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list for Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical 
services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC) Project.  
 
At the November 20, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors authorized staff to negotiate 
professional service agreements with 11 surveying firms. 
 
Additionally, on March 19, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized early acquisition of right of way for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project as part of the Agreed Order between ETT – Cross Valley Project and the 
HCRMA. 
 
On June 18, 2014, the Board of Directors approved Work Authorization No. 1 to provide parcel platting for 8 tracts 
within the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. The work is necessary to acquire the right of way agreed 
upon by the HCRMA and ETT. 
 
Goal 
Staff is proposing Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to provide revised parcel platting for 6 
existing tracts due to an adjustment of the roadway alignment to accommodate both ETT and the Donna Irrigation 
District as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project.  
 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 is proposed to perform the work in the amount of 
$4,842.00. 
 
Options 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 may be disapproved by the Board of Directors.  
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2014-120 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 to 
Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service agreement with Melden and Hunt to provide 
revised parcel plats and descriptions for the ETT/Cross Valley Transmission Line Project as part of the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount of $4,842.00 is recommended. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2014 – 120 
 

APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO WORK 
AUTHORIZATON NUMBER 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 
AGREEMENT WITH MELDEN & HUNT TO PROVIDE REVISED 

PARCEL PLATS AND DESCRIPTIONS FOR ETT/CROSS VALLEY 
TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT AS PART OF THE 

INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE TRADE CORRIDOR PROJECT 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of December, 2014 by the Board of 
Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority 
created pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 
and around Hidalgo County;  

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012-04, 

which created the Technical Committee, comprised of senior level engineers and 
professional from various communities and agencies in the jurisdiction of the Authority, 
to serve to advise the Board on procurement and consultant work products; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2012-04 also authorized the Executive Committee to 

determine the size, structure and scope of the Technical Committee, identify candidates 
and issue requests for participation; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2013-41 authorized the use and structure of the Technical 

Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list to the Board of Directors for the 
Statements of Qualifications for the International Bride Trade Corridor Project for 
Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Technical Committee has rated and ranked the Statements of 

Qualifications for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project for Surveying Services 
and recommended that HCRMA staff be authorized to negotiate with all qualified 
Surveying Firms to establish a surveying pool for the project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized staff to 

negotiate professional services agreements with Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, 
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, 
Melden & Hunt, DOS Land Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying 
Services and Fulcrum Consulting Services; and 

 
 



WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority awarded professional service 
agreements to Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, 
Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, Melden & Hunt, DOS Land 
Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum 
Consulting Services for surveying services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor 
Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Melden & Hunt to prepare 8 parcel 
plats and descriptions in the amount of $26,210.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve 

Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service 
Agreement with Melden and Hunt to provide revised parcel platting for 6 existing tracts 
due to an adjustment of the roadway alignment to accommodate both ETT and the Donna 
Irrigation District as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount 
of $4,842.00;  

 
 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves Supplemental Number 1 to Work 
Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreements for Surveying Services 
with Melden & Hunt, hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Supplemental 
Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Services Agreement for 
Surveying Services with Melden & Hunt as approved.  
 

***** 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of 
December, 2014, at which meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
      Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
             
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
 

Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 
to 

Professional Service Agreements  
with 

Melden & Hunt 
for 

Surveying Services 
for the 

International Bridge Trade Corridor 
 

 



 

Contract 

 

 

Hidalgo County  

Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 

 

SURVEYING SERVICES IBTC 

Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and 

from the ValleyView Interchange to 

FM 493 

 

 

 

SWA No. 1 to WA No.1  

 

December 05, 2014 

Melden & Hunt, Inc. 



SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 to 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for Melden & Hunt, Inc. for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Attachment D-1 – Page 1 

 

ATTACHMENT D-2 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION  NO. __1__ 

TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.  __1__ 

AGREEMENT FOR  SURVEYING SERVICES 

 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of 

“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services” hereinafter identified as the 

“Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and 

Melden & Hunt, Inc. (the Surveyor). 

  

The following terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. __1__ are hereby amended as follows: 

 

Exhibit C 

Work Schedule is amended to extend termination date for Work Authorization No. 1 close of business on 

January 31, 2015. 
 

Exhibit D 

Fee Schedule/Budget is amended as noted in Exhibit D for a total amount of $4,842.00, bringing the revised 

Work Authorization No. 1 amount to $31,052.00. 
 

Exhibit H-2 

Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement is amended as noted in Exhibit H-2. 

 

 

This Supplemental Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final execution of the parties 

hereto.  All other terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. __1__ not hereby amended are to remain in 

full force and effect.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and 

hereby accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

      THE SURVEYOR                  THE AUTHORITY  
     

______________________________   ______________________________ 

       (Signature)       (Signature) 

              Fred L. Kurth                                                                           . 

  (Printed Name)             (Printed Name) 

                President                       .                                                        . 

        (Title)           (Title) 

______________________________   ______________________________ 

        (Date)           (Date) 

 

 

 
LIST OF EXHIBITS 

Exhibit D  Fee Schedule/Budget 

Exhibit H-2  Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 



EXHIBIT D 
FEE SCHEDULE BUDGET 

 

SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 to 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for Melden & Hunt, Inc. for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Exhibit D – Page 1 

 

 



EXHIBIT 'D'

Prime: Melden & Hunt, Inc. Fee Schedule/Budget for

Survey Services for the HCRMA Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA)

SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 Supplemental Work Authorization No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 1

Schedule Duration: 01/31/2015 IBTC Surveying Services

SURVEY SERVICES

DESCRIPTION

Principal / Sr. 

Manager / Senior 

survey Manager

Project Surveyor 

(RPLS)

Senior Survey 

Tech / SIT
Survey Technician CADD Operator Clerical / Admin. Abstractor

1-Person Survey 

Crew

2-Person Survey 

Crew

3-Person Survey 

Crew

4-Person Survey 

Crew

Total

Labor Hrs.
Remarks

 Task

Cost 

Coordination, Admin, Research and Abstracting 3 2 5  $                           810.00 

Field Work 4 4 9 17  $                        2,732.00 

CAD Work 2 12 14  $                        1,300.00 

Subtotal 9 0 6 12 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 36 4,842.00$                         

Total Manhours by Classification 9 0 6 12 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 36

Contract Hourly Rate by Classification 200.00$                    150.00$                 105.00$                 75.00$                   65.00$                   50.00$                   65.00$                   80.00$                   130.00$                 168.00$                 198.00$                 

Total Fee by Classification 1,800.00$                 -$                       630.00$                 900.00$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       1,512.00$              -$                       4,842.00$                

CHECK (MHRs):

% Utilization by Over 6 months 0.87% 0.00% 0.58% 1.16% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 27

% of Total Labor Hours 25.00% 0.00% 16.67% 33.33% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% CHECK (LABOR):

% of Total Labor Cost 37.17% 0.00% 13.01% 18.59% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 4,842.00$                  

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST 4,842.00$                         

DIRECT EXPENSES Rate Unit Amount Total

Mileage 0.56$                         Mile 0 -$                       -$                           

Photocopies 0.10$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

Blueline/Blackline Prints 2.00$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

Deed/Copies 1.00$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

Certified Deed Copies 2.00$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

Mylar (11x17) 3.00$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

Mylar (22x34) 6.00$                         Sheet 0 -$                       -$                           

TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES -$                       -$                                  

Name Task(s) Summary

TOTAL SPECIAL SERVICES FEE (SUBCONSULTANTS) -$                                  

GRAND TOTAL 4,842.00$                         

LIMITS:   From the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 (As-Assigned by the HCRMA)

Revised Parcels due to IBTC ROW Modifications: 269P1 & 269P2 for Donna Irr. 

Distr. ILA; and 230, and 235-237 for ETT/AEP Project ROW

0010 IBTC\01 Contract Admin\0010 Melden Hunt\05 Contract\02 WA No. 1\SWA 1 to WA 1\05 Exhibit D - Fee Schedule SWA1 to WA1-M&H

Exhibit D 

 12/8/2014



SWA No. 1 to WA No. 1 to 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for Melden & Hunt, Inc.  for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Exhibit H-2 – Page 1 

  

EXHIBIT H-2 

Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

This commitment agreement is subject to the award and receipt of a signed contract from the Hidalgo County 

Regional Mobility Authority (Authority).  NOTE: Attachment H-2 is required to be attached to each contract 

that does not include work authorizations.  Attachment H-2 is required to be attached with each work 

authorization.  Attachment H-2 is also required to be attached to each supplemental work authorization.  If 

DBE/HUB Subproviders are used, the form must be completed and signed.  If no DBE/HUB Subproviders are 

used, indicate with “N/A” on this line: __________ and attach with the work authorization or supplemental 

work authorization.   

Contract #:              Assigned Goal: 0.0%   Prime Provider Melden & Hunt, Inc.                 

Work Authorization (WA)#:       1     WA Amount:         $26,210.00             Date:     

Supplemental Work Authorization (SWA) #:      1      to WA #:        1              SWA Amount:    $4,842.00                        

Revised WA Amount:    $31,052.00                      

Description of Work 
(List by category of work or task description.  Attach additional pages, if 

necessary.) 

Dollar Amount 

(For each category of work or task 

description shown.) 

Survey Revised Parcels $4,842.00 

FC  $0 

Total Commitment Amount (Including all additional pages.) $0 

IMPORTANT: The signatures of the prime and the DBE/HUB and Second Tier Subprovider, if any (both DBE and Non-

DBE) and the total commitment amount must always be on the same page. 

Provider Name:  Melden & Hunt, Inc. 

Address:  115 W McIntyre 

                 Edinburg, Tx 78539 

VID Number: 17417379595 

PH: (956) 381-0981; FX: (     )     -       

Email: fkurth@meldenandhunt.com  

 

Name:  Robert Tamez                              

(Please Print) 

Title:              Vice-President                          

 

       

Signature                             Date 

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 

Subprovider Name: Survtex, LLC 

VID Number:  

Address:  

PH:    FX:  

Email:  

Signature                             Date 

 

Name:                                                      

(Please Print) 

Title:                                                    

 

                            

 
 

 

mailto:fkurth@meldenandhunt.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Item 2L 



 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

         
AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 
 

                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2L                             
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED         12/09/14                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE      12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2014 -121 – APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 2 TO  

THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH MELDEN AND HUNT TO INCREASE  
THE MAXIMUM PAYABLE AMOUNT FOR SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 1 TO WORK   
AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 1.          

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of Supplemental Number 2 to the Professional Service Agreement  

with Melden and Hunt to increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 1 to 
Work Authorization Number 1 in the amount of $4,842.00 for a revised maximum payable  
amount of $36,594.00.            

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A   Funding Source:   VRF Bond   

 
Approved maximum payable fee       $31,752.00   
Approved Work Authorizations 1    $31,752.00 

 Maximum fee balance      $         0.00 
 

 Proposed Supplemental No. 1 to PSA: 
 
 Supplemental Number 1 to PSA     $    4,842.00 
 Revised Maximum Payable Amount         $  36,594.00  
  
       
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2014-121 - Approval of Supplemental 

Number 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with Melden and Hunt to increase the  
maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 in 
the amount of $4,842.00 for a revised maximum payable amount of $36,594.00.   

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved           None 
 
7. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None  
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved          None 



 

Memorandum 
To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: December 9, 2014 

Re: Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to the Professional Service Agreement 
with Melden and Hunt  

Background 
At the October 16, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors approved the use and members of the 
Technical Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list for Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical 
services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC) Project.  
 
At the November 20, 2013, regular meeting, the HCRMA Board of Directors authorized staff to negotiate 
professional service agreements with 11 surveying firms. 
 
Additionally, on March 19, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized early acquisition of right of way for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project as part of the Agreed Order between ETT – Cross Valley Project and the 
HCRMA. 
 
On June 18, 2014, the Board of Directors approved Work Authorization No. 1 to provide parcel platting for 8 tracts 
within the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. The work is necessary to acquire the right of way agreed 
upon by the HCRMA and ETT. 
 
Goal 
Staff is proposing Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to provide revised parcel platting for 6 
existing tracts due to an adjustment of the roadway alignment to accommodate both ETT and the Donna Irrigation 
District as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project.  
 
Supplemental Number 2 to the Professional Service Agreement is proposed to increase the maximum payable 
amount by $4,842.00 for a revised maximum payable amount of $36,594.00. 
 
Options 
Supplemental Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement may be disapproved by the Board of Directors.  
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2014-121 – Approval of Supplemental Number 2 to the 
Professional Service agreement with Melden and Hunt to increase the maximum payable amount for 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1in the amount of $4,842.00 for a revised maximum 
payable amount of $36,594.00 is recommended. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2014 – 121 
 

APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 2 TO THE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH MELDEN & HUNT 
TO PROVIDE SURVEYING SERVICES FOR THE INTERNATIONAL 

BRIDGE TRADE CORRIDOR PROJECT TO INCREASE THE 
MAXIMUM PAYABLE AMOUNT FOR SUPPLEMENTAL NUMBER 

1 TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 1 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of December, 2014 by the Board of 
Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority 
created pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 
and around Hidalgo County;  

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012-04, 

which created the Technical Committee, comprised of senior level engineers and 
professional from various communities and agencies in the jurisdiction of the Authority, 
to serve to advise the Board on procurement and consultant work products; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2012-04 also authorized the Executive Committee to 

determine the size, structure and scope of the Technical Committee, identify candidates 
and issue requests for participation; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2013-41 authorized the use and structure of the Technical 

Committee to rate, rank and recommend a short list to the Board of Directors for the 
Statements of Qualifications for the International Bride Trade Corridor Project for 
Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Technical Committee has rated and ranked the Statements of 

Qualifications for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project for Surveying Services 
and recommended that HCRMA staff be authorized to negotiate with all qualified 
Surveying Firms to establish a surveying pool for the project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized staff to 

negotiate professional services agreements with Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, 
Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, 
Melden & Hunt, DOS Land Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying 
Services and Fulcrum Consulting Services; and 

 



WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority awarded professional service 
agreements to Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, 
Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, Melden & Hunt, DOS Land 
Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum 
Consulting Services for surveying services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor 
Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Melden & Hunt to prepare 8 parcel 
plats and descriptions in the amount of $26,210.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on August 27, 2014, the Authority approved Work Authorization 

Number 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with Melden & Hunt to provide select 
topography along the Donna Irrigation District Main Canal in the amount of $5,542.00; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, on September 24, 2014, the Authority approve Supplemental 

Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Melden & Hunt to increase the 
maximum payable amount to correspond with the approved work authorizations in the 
revised maximum payable amount of $31,752.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 15, 2014, the Authority approved Supplemental 

Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with 
Melden & Hunt to provide revised parcel platting for 6 existing tracts due to an 
adjustment of the roadway alignment to accommodate both ETT and the Donna Irrigation 
District as part of the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project in the amount of 
$4,842.00; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Authority has determined it is necessary to approve 
Supplemental Number 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with Melden & Hunt to 
increase the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 1 to Work 
Authorization Number 1 in the amount of $4,842.00 for a revised maximum payable 
amount of $36,594.00;  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves Supplemental Number 2 to the Professional 
Service Agreements for Surveying Services with Melden & Hunt, hereto attached as 
Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Supplemental 
Number 2 to the Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services with Melden & 
Hunt as approved.  
 

***** 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of 
December, 2014, at which meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
      Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
             
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
 

Supplemental Number 2 
to 

Professional Service Agreements  
with 

Melden & Hunt 
for 

Surveying Services 
for the 

International Bridge Trade Corridor 
 

 



 

Contract 

 

 

Hidalgo County  

Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 

 

SURVEYING SERVICES IBTC 

Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and 

from the ValleyView Interchange to 

FM 493 

 

 

 

SA No. 2 to Main Contract 

 

December 05, 2014 

Melden & Hunt, Inc. 



Supplemental No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for Melden & Hunt, Inc.  for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Attachment D – Page 1 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO.  2 

 

  



Supplemental No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement 

HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for Melden & Hunt, Inc.  for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 
Attachment D – Page 2 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. _ 2 _ 

TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING / DESIGN SERVICES 
 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO 1 TO MAIN CONTRACT is made pursuant to the terms and 

conditions of “Article III Compensation and Attachment A General Provisions Section 6 Supplemental 

Agreements of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Design Services” hereinafter 

identified as the “Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

(Authority), and Melden & Hunt, Inc. (the Engineer). 
  
The following terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby amended as follows: 

 

 

Article III Compensation  

Article III Compensation shall be amended to increase the amount payable under this contract from $31,752.00 

to $36,594.00 for a total increase of $4,842.00 due to additional scope and effort outlined in SWA No. 1 to WA 

No. 1. 

 

 

 

This Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the Main Contract shall become effective on the date of final execution 

of the parties hereto.  All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not hereby amended are to remain in full 

force and effect. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Agreement is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby 

accepted and acknowledged below. 

 

 

 

      THE ENGINEER          THE AUTHORITY  
 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Signature)      (Signature) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Printed Name)     (Printed Name) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Title)       (Title) 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 (Date)       (Date) 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 3A 



 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

         
AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 
 

              BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                    3A                      
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          12/04/14                      
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2014-111 – ADOPTION OF HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL 

MOBILITY AUTHORITY FISCAL YEAR 2015 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET._  ___ 
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and adoption of Fiscal Year 2015 Budget.  The HCRMA’s fiscal year begins January_ 

1, 2015 and ends December 31, 2015.        ___      
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas ___ 

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                        ___ 
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2014-111 – Adopt the Hidalgo County___ 

Regional Mobility Authority Fiscal Year 2015 Operating and Capital Budget.   ___ 
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
10. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 

 
 
 
 
 



 

I 
 

 

 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
November 26, 2014 
 
To:    Rance Sweeten, Chairman 
 
From:    Jerry Dale, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Subject:  Adopt Budget for Year 2015 
 
Background 
As provided by law and good business practice, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority budget as 
recommended  for  calendar  year  2015  is  respectfully  submitted  to  the  Board  of  Directors  for 
consideration, approval and adoption.    It consists of  three distinct sections  (fund  types)—namely,  the 
General Fund, the Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds.  In addition to the budget for 2015 
a plan is presented for the succeeding five (5) years for the purpose of providing a longer‐view perspective 
and some direction of the future path from financing activities of the project, to its design/construction 
activities—all leading up to the commencement of toll operations.  The budget and plan was developed 
consistent with  the  Strategic  Plan  dated  September  2014  (with  the  exception  of  $19.6M  in  capital 
expenditures  for  IBTC  being moved  from  2014  to  2015).  This  Plan was  developed  by  Dannenbaum 
Engineering Corporation, which in turn integrated the Investment Grade T&R Study performed by C&M 
Associates, Inc. and the Financing Plan developed by First Southwest Company.  As important as the 5‐
year plan is, our focus today is on the 2015 budget. 
 
Overview of the Budget and Plan 
Over the next two years, the financing activities of the HCRMA will be extensive.  The plan includes issuing 
five  (5)  separate  series of bonds—three  (3) of which will be  TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds; with  the 
remaining  two  (2),  Toll  Revenue  Bonds.    In  addition,  borrowing  funds  under  a  loan with  the  State 
Infrastructure Bank is anticipated.  Four (4) of the series of bonds are planned to be issued in 2015 with 
the  remaining  series,  Toll  Revenue  Bond  Issue  #2,  and  the  SIB  loan  occurring  in  2016.  For  budget 
presentation purposes,  the  two  (2) TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds  financing SH 365 Segments 1‐3 and 
Segment 4, are present under one fund for both the Debt Service Funds as well as the Bond Construction 
Funds.  These financing activities will generate $556M in bond/loan gross proceeds.  An additional $5.6M 
has been budgeted for a state grant.  Supplemented by an additional $40.3 of the remaining proceeds of 
the Vehicle Registration Fee Bonds Series 2013, which will be spent from August 2013 going forward, total 



 

II 
 

gross bond/loan proceeds amount to $601.9M.  Net of issuing cost, bond reserve funds (when required) 
and capitalized interest—all of which will be discussed below, net bond/loan proceeds are expected to 
amount to $438.4M.  Including the $5.6M state grant and the $40.3M remaining from Series 2013 Bonds, 
$484.3M will be available to cover the cost of both SH 365 (Segments 1‐3 and 4) and IBTC in the amounts 
of $290.6M and $193.7M, respectively. 
 
Over the next 6 years, the General Fund, which includes the general and operating expenses, will continue 
to  grow  as  the  organization  becomes  larger  and more  complex—moving  from  planning  and  design 
activities to final plans, construction and operations.  It is expected to grow from $1.1M in 2015 to $1.6M 
in 2020—most of which is personnel related. 
 
Working capital has been planned to remain stable at $750K—in the range of 180days or more.  During 
all of the years presented the bond coverage ratio of the VRF 2013 issue is shown at 1.43X to 1.58X. First 
Southwest Company has computed it for the two Toll Revenue Bonds Issues at 1.20X. 
 
The budget for 2015 as presented reflects total spending at $146M—with $1.1 for operations, $129M for 
capital expenditures and $15.5M for debt service. 
 
General Fund – Within the General Fund, VRFs were estimated to increase by 2% over the estimate for 
2014.  Spending is recommended to increase $95.9K due primarily to the following reasons: 
 

 a 2 ½% COLA has been provided 
 adjustment to pay rate of Executive Director 
 increase in audit cost 

 
No new employee positions have been provided for in the budget for 2015. 
 
The excess revenues from VRFs, after administrative expenses, which are expected to amount to $1.6M 
have been  transferred  to a new  capital project  fund,  leaving a  reasonable amount of working  capital 
intact, which has been determined to be $750K. 
 
At the end of the year, we estimate that working capital will amount to $750K and the bond coverage 
ratio will be 1.43X. 
 
Debt Service Funds 
Consistent with the Financing Plan developed by First Southwest Company, this budget/plan reports that 
of the $556M in gross debt proceeds $118M will be spent on financing costs‐‐$5M in bond issue costs, 
$17M  providing  bond  reserve  funds  for  the  Toll  Revenue  Bond  Issues with  the  remaining  $96M  for 
capitalized interest—leaving $438M to spend for project costs. 
 
Rather than providing cash bond reserves with the high cost associated with that method, In a negative 
arbitrage environment, every attempt will be made to purchase surety  insurance  if  it provides a short 
term payback. 



 

III 
 

The large amount of capitalized interest required is a consequence of public financing in which funding is 
upfront.    The  good  news  is  that  of  the  $96  in  capitalized  interest,  $67M  is  related  to  TxDOT 
Reimbursement Bonds—all of which will be ultimately be paid by the State.  The bad news is that $29M 
is related to Toll Revenue Bonds and will be repaid by HCRMA. And, even though the State will ultimately 
pay this cost related to the TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds, that amount could have otherwise been used 
for part of  the next phase of  the  Loop Project.   Every effort will be made  to mitigate  the amount of 
capitalized interest by considering more frequent bond issues at smaller amounts, utilizing lines of credit 
to draw as needed and taken out though refunding, etc.  Perhaps First Southwest Company could perform 
a sensitivity anaylsis , taking into account the potential for rising interest rates, which could be a risk. 
 
Capital Project Funds 
The following amounts aggregating $36M have been identified as additional sources not included in the 
Strategic Plan, remaining in fund balances of the following funds: 
 
Funded by Excess Vehicle Registration Fee Revenues from General Fund – $8.6M. 
 
Funded by Cities—Several cities, directly affected by  IBTC, has  committed  to an aggregate amount of 
$105K per year, which as shown is budgeted to pay for ROW.  At the end of 2020, fund balance is reported 
at $630K. 
 
Funded by Grants—The Cat 10 grant amounting to $1.3M is reported at 2014 and remaining at 2020.  In 
addition is the $25M grant that Representative Martinez assisted with obtaining. 
  
SIB Loan Construction Fund—$500K remains in fund balance in 2018—continuing through 2020. 
 
We  recommend  that  the  Board  consider  leaving  these  funds  in  place  at  the moment  and make  a 
determination at a later date. 
 
We believe that this budget realistically provides the adequate and necessary funding to accomplish this 
part of the strategic plan in a manner that is both effective and efficient.  We look forward to presenting 
this budget to you and welcome any questions, comments and recommendations to improve it. 
 
Goal 
The goal of this  item  is to meet the  legal requirement as well as provide prudent financial/operational 
management to the affairs of the HCRMA. 
 
Options 
The Board, at its discretion, may wish to modify any part of this recommended budget. 
 
Recommendation 
Based upon a review by this Office, it is recommended that the 2015 Budget be approved and adopted as 
presented. 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2014-111 

 
 

ADOPTION OF HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY  
FISCAL YEAR 2015 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 

 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15TH   day of December, 2014 by the Board of Director of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
  

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 

October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is required to report to the Texas Department of 

Transportation the annual operating and capital budget adopted pursuant to the Texas 
Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility Authority 
Reports and Audits), as amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s fiscal year commences on January 1, 2015 and ends on 

December 31, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority has reviewed the proposed Fiscal Year 2015 Budget for the 

necessary operating and capital expenses;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board adopts the Fiscal Year 2015 Operating and Capital Budget, hereto 

attached as Exhibit A. 
 

Section 3. The Board of Directors authorize the Executive Director to manage and 
administer the Fiscal Year 2015 Operating and Capital Budget. 

 
***** 

 
 



 
 
Passed and Approved as to be effective immediately this 15th day of December 2014, at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at which a 
quorum was present and which was held in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
       
Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
             

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY  
FISCAL YEAR 2015  

OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 



Beginning Projected Bond Transfers Transfers
Net Position/Balance Revenues Proceeds In Out

General Fund
General Fund 750,000$                     5,691,298$                 361,587,713$              -$                                (366,215,735)$             

Total General Fund 750,000$                     5,691,298$                 361,587,713$              -$                                (366,215,735)$            

Debt Service Funds
  Senior Lein Vehicle Registration Fee Series 2013
      Revenue and Refunding Bonds 331,326$                     -$                                3,975,829$                 -$                                
  TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds 2015 (SH 365 Seg 1-3 & 4) -                                  -                                  -                                  23,507,604                 -                                  
  TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds 2015 (IBTC) -                                  -                                  -                                  19,792,875                 -                                  
  Toll Revenue Bonds #1 Series 2015 -                                  -                                  -                                  23,612,572                 -                                  

Tota Debt Service Funds 331,326$                     -$                                -$                                70,888,880$               -$                                

Bond Reserve Fund(s)
  Toll Revenue Bonds #1 Series 2015 -$                                -$                                -$                                7,975,541$                 -$                                

Total Bond Reserve Fund(s) -$                                -$                                -$                                7,975,541$                 -$                                

Capital Projects Funds
 Capital Projects Fund - Funded by VRFs 3,212,013$                  -$                                -$                                652,191$                    -$                                
 Capital Projects Fund - Funded by Cities -                                  105,000                      -                                  -                                  -                                  
 Capital Projects Fund - Funded by State Grants 1,091,547                    5,600,000                   -                                  -                                  -                                  
 Capital Projects Fund - Bond Construction Fund 2013 13,651,000                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  
 Capital Projects Funds--BONDS
    TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds 2015 (SH 365 Seg 1-3 & 4) -                                  -                                  -                                  145,253,196               -                                  
    TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds 2015 (IBTC) -                                  -                                  -                                  91,504,496                 -                                  
    Toll Revenue Bonds #1 Series 2015 -                                  49,941,429                 -                                  

Total Capital Project Funds 17,954,560                  5,705,000                   -                                  287,351,312               -                                  

TOTALS 19,035,886$                11,396,298$               361,587,713$              366,215,733$             (366,215,735)$            

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
2014-2015 Combined Budget Summary

All Funds

Combined Fund Balance Summary



Capital Debt Total Revenue Over/Under Other Items Ending
Operations Outlay Service Appropriations Expenses Working Capital Net Position/Balance

1,063,276$                   -$                                 -$                                 1,063,276$                   -$                                 -$                                 750,000$                      

1,063,276$                   -$                                 -$                                 1,063,276$                   -$                                 -$                                 750,000$                      

-$                                 -$                                 3,975,963$                   3,975,963$                   (134)$                           -$                                 331,192$                      
-                                   -                                   4,613,396                     4,613,396                     18,894,208                   -                                   18,894,208                   
-                                   -                                   4,632,375                     4,632,375                     15,160,500                   -                                   15,160,500                   
-                                   -                                   2,264,219                     2,264,219                     21,348,353                   -                                   21,348,353                   

-$                                 -$                                 15,485,953$                 15,485,953$                 55,402,927$                 -$                                 55,734,253$                 

-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 7,975,541$                   -$                                 7,975,541$                   

-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 7,975,541$                   -$                                 7,975,541$                   

-$                                 3,864,204$                   -$                                 3,864,204$                   (3,212,013)$                  -$                                 -$                                 
-                                   105,000                        -                                   105,000                        -                                   -                                   -                                   
-                                   5,600,000                     -                                   5,600,000                     -                                   -                                   1,091,547                     
-                                   11,933,000                   -                                   11,933,000                   (11,933,000)                  -                                   1,718,000                     

-                                   45,704,000                   -                                   45,704,000                   99,549,196                   -                                   99,549,196                   
-                                   41,841,000                   -                                   41,841,000                   49,663,496                   -                                   49,663,496                   
-                                   20,738,000                   -                                   20,738,000                   29,203,429                   -                                   29,203,429                   

-                                   129,785,204                 -                                   129,785,204                 163,271,108                 -                                   181,225,668                 

1,063,276$                   129,785,204$               15,485,953$                 146,334,433$               226,649,576$               -$                                 245,685,462$               

Combined Fund Balance Summary



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
  2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Working Capital ‐$                      1,733,711$     3,168,493$      750,000$           750,001$               750,000$              750,000$              750,000$              750,000$             

Revenues
Vehicle Registration Fees 5,440,240        5,579,704      5,579,704       5,691,298         5,805,124           5,921,227           6,039,651           6,160,444           6,283,653          
Interest Income 12                     ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
Tolls ‐ SH 365 ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             1,475,000           4,090,000           5,450,000          
Tolls ‐ IBTC ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             770,000               2,100,000           1,750,000          

  Total Revenues 5,440,252        5,579,704      5,579,704       5,691,298         5,805,124           5,921,227           8,284,651           12,350,444         13,483,653        

Expenditures
Administration
  Personnel Services 258,070            507,478          488,063           553,736            690,385               1,011,847           1,045,810           1,117,963           1,145,328          
  Supplies 5,376                7,500              5,000               10,000               10,000                  12,500                 12,500                 15,000                 15,000                
  Other Services and Charges 199,880            275,400          304,222           322,540            329,290               346,290               350,790               367,290               367,290              
  Maintenance ‐                        2,000              2,000               2,000                 2,000                     2,000                    2,000                    2,000                    2,000                   
  Capital Outlay ‐                        175,000          5,000               175,000            33,200                  36,400                 30,000                 39,000                 30,000                
  Total Administration Expenditures 463,326            967,378          804,285           1,063,276         1,064,875           1,409,037           1,441,100           1,541,253           1,559,618          

Operatons
SH 365 ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             655,841               1,499,330           1,705,419          
IBTC ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             334,394               733,302               805,207              
Toll Operations Expense‐‐Net ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             990,235               2,232,632           2,510,626          

  Total Expenditures 463,326            967,378          804,285           1,063,276         1,064,875           1,409,037           2,431,335           3,773,885           4,070,244          

Net Increase (Decrease) Before Other
  Financing Sources (Uses) 4,976,926        4,612,326      4,775,419       4,628,022         4,740,249           4,512,190           5,853,316           8,576,559           9,413,409          

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
VRF Issue Note 1 Note 2

Gross  Bond Proceeds @ Par plus Prem 63,899,934      ‐                       ‐                        364,965,655    191,013,396       ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
(Cost of Issuance) (1,161,714)       ‐                       ‐                        (3,377,942)        (1,409,738)          ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
(Underwriter Expenses) incl ‐                       ‐                        incl ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
(Refund LOC (PCB/FNB) (10,786,349)    ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
  Net Proceeds from VRF 13 Bonds 51,951,871      ‐                       ‐                        361,587,713    189,603,658       ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
General Fund Budget Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

1



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
  2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
General Fund Budget Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

Transfers‐In (Out)
 Debt Service Fund‐FNB LOC 150,000            ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Debt Service Fund ‐ FNB LOC (1,780,165)       ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Debt Service Fund ‐ VRF 2013 Bonds (325,248)          (3,981,899)     (3,981,899)      (3,975,829)        (3,974,411)          (3,976,183)          (3,976,753)          (3,974,782)          (3,973,313)         
 Debt Service Fund ‐ TxDOT Reimb Bonds ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        (66,913,051)     (28,804,913)        ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Debt Service Fund ‐ SIB Loan ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Debt Service Fund ‐ Toll Rev Bonds ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Bond Reserve Fund ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        (7,975,541)        (9,100,321)          ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Capital Projects Fund ‐ VRF 13 Bonds (51,951,871)    ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Capital Projects Fund ‐ TxDOT Reimb Bonds ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        (236,757,694)   ‐                             
 Capital Projects Fund ‐ SIB Loan ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          (99,441,282)        ‐                             ‐                             (3,300,168)          (4,768,124)         
 Capital Projects Fund ‐ Toll Rev Bonds ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        (49,941,429)     (52,257,143)        ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                            
 Capital Projects Fund ‐ VRF ‐                        (1,614,138)     (3,212,013)      (652,191)           (765,837)              (536,007)              (1,876,563)          (1,045,675)          (506,651)             
  Capital Projects Fund ‐ Replacement ‐                        ‐                       ‐                        ‐                          ‐                              ‐                             ‐                             (255,934)              (165,321)             
  Total (Transfers Out) (53,907,284)    (5,596,037)     (7,193,912)      (366,215,735)   (194,343,907)     (4,512,190)          (5,853,316)          (8,576,559)          (9,413,409)         

  Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,955,413)       (5,596,037)     (7,193,912)      (4,628,022)        (4,740,249)          (4,512,190)          (5,853,316)          (8,576,559)          (9,413,409)         

Net Increase (Decrease) After Other
  Financing Sources (Uses) 3,021,513        (983,711)        (2,418,493)      0                         (0)                           (0)                          (0)                          (0)                          0                           

Ending Working Capital 3,168,493$      750,000$         750,000$         750,001$           750,000$               750,000$              750,000$              750,000$              750,000$             

Operating Expenditures per Day 1,269$              2,650$             2,204$              2,913$                2,917$                   3,860$                  3,948$                  4,223$                  4,273$                 

No. of Days of Operating Expenditures
  in Working Capital 2,496                283                  340                   257                    257                        194                       190                       178                       176                      

Bond Coverage Ratio
  VRF Series 2013 Bonds 1.40                 X 1.40                  X 1.43                   X 1.46                       X 1.49                      X 1.52                      X 1.55                      X 1.58                     

Working Capital Calc
Current Assets per Audited F/S 4,124,738$     
Current Liabilities per Audited F/S (1,281,493)      
Working Capital ‐‐ Unadjusted 2,843,245       
Plus:  Debt Service Fund per Audited F/s 325,248           
Working Capital ‐‐ As Adjusted 3,168,493$     

Note 1 ‐ Includes TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds for SH 365 and IBTC and Toll Revenue Bond #1
Note 2 ‐ Includes SIB Loan and Toll Revenue Bond #2

2



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Exempt
  Executive Director ‐$                      174,250$    204,250$   200,000$       205,000$        210,125$       215,378$       220,763$       226,282$       
  ROW Acquisition Coordinator ‐ Full Time ‐                        70,000       52,500      71,750           73,544             75,382           77,267           79,199           81,179           
  Contract Compliance/Auditor ‐ Full‐Time ‐                        95,000       71,250      97,375           99,809             102,305        104,862        107,484        110,171        
  Construction Maintenance Engineer ‐ FT ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      95,000             97,375           99,809           102,305        104,862        
  Deputy Executive Director ‐ Full Time ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       150,000        153,750        157,594        161,534        
  Design/Development Engineer ‐ Full Time ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       95,000           97,375           99,809           102,305        
  Total Exempt ‐                        339,250     328,000    369,125        473,353          730,187        748,442        767,153        786,331        

Non‐Exempt
  Program Administrator ‐                        50,188       48,964      50,188           51,443             52,729           54,047           55,398           56,783           
  Secretary ‐ Full‐Time ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                       
  Secretary ‐ Full‐Time ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       ‐                      ‐                      35,000           35,875           
  Total Non‐Exempt ‐                        50,188       48,964      50,188           51,443             52,729           54,047           90,398           92,658           

Part Time ‐ Chief Financial Officer ‐                        ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                       

Other
Overtime ‐                        2,500         2,500         5,000             5,000               5,000             5,000             7,500             7,500             
Vehicle Allowance ‐                        20,400       17,700      26,400           32,400             38,400           44,400           44,400           44,400           
Phone Allowance ‐                        5,100         6,825         5,100             6,300               8,700             8,700             9,900             9,900             
  Total Other ‐                        28,000       27,025      36,500           43,700             52,100           58,100           61,800           61,800           

Sub‐Total ‐                        417,438     403,989    455,813        568,496          835,016        860,589        919,351        940,790        

Benefits @ 20% ‐                        83,488       80,798      91,163           113,699          167,003        172,118        183,870        188,158        

Administrative Fee ‐                        6,552         3,276         6,760             8,190               9,828             13,104           14,742           16,380           
  Total Compensation 258,070            507,478     488,063    553,736        690,385          1,011,847     1,045,810     1,117,963     1,145,328    

SUPPLIES
Office Supplies 5,376               7,500         5,000         10,000           10,000             12,500           12,500           15,000           15,000           

5,376               7,500         5,000         10,000           10,000             12,500           12,500           15,000           15,000           
OTHER SERVICES & CHARGES
Accounting (Salinas, Allen & Schimit) 10,200             10,200       10,200      10,200           x 10,200             10,200           10,200           10,200           10,200           
Dues & Subscriptions (Publications/Lisc/Prof Orgs 56,140             22,500       19,750      25,000           27,750             30,750           31,250           33,750           33,750           
Insurance ‐ E&O ‐                        640             640            640                x 640                 640                640                640                640                

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
General Fund Expenditure Budget Detail

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

COMPENSATION

3



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
General Fund Expenditure Budget Detail

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

Insurance ‐ Surety 2,115               800             800            800                x 800                 800                800                800                800                
Training 580                  11,500       7,000         16,000           13,000             15,000           17,000           19,000           19,000           
Travel 8,301               15,000       13,000      17,000           19,000             21,000           23,000           25,000           25,000           
Temporary Employees ‐                        7,000         7,000         7,000             x 7,000               7,000             7,000             7,000             7,000             
Printing 3,889               1,200         1,200         1,200             x 1,200               1,200             1,200             1,200             1,200             
Postage/FedEx/Courier Services 1,005               2,000         2,000         2,000             x 2,000               2,000             2,000             2,000             2,000             
Rental ‐ Office 25,606             15,000       12,000      20,000           25,000             25,000           25,000           25,000           25,000           
Rental ‐ Office Equipment ‐                        10,900       6,972         10,900           x 10,900             10,900           10,900           10,900           10,900           
Contractual Adm/IT Services ‐                        4,860         4,860         10,000           x 10,000             10,000           10,000           10,000           10,000           
Contractual Website Services ‐                        1,800         1,800         1,800             x 1,800               1,800             1,800             1,800             1,800             
Consulting 61,549             172,000     217,000    200,000        200,000          210,000        210,000        220,000        220,000        
Other 30,495             ‐                  ‐                 ‐                      ‐                       ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                       

Legal ‐ Bracewell, Guilliani ‐                        50,000       85,000      50,000           x 50,000             50,000           50,000           50,000           50,000           
Legal ‐ Dan Rios ‐                        50,000       59,000      50,000           x 50,000             50,000           50,000           50,000           50,000           
Chief Financial Officer ‐                        57,000       57,000      60,000           x 60,000             60,000           60,000           60,000           60,000           
Audit ‐                        15,000       16,000      40,000           40,000             50,000           50,000           60,000           60,000           

  Total Other Services & Charges 199,880            275,400     304,222    322,540        329,290          346,290        350,790        367,290        367,290        

MAINTENANCE
Equipment Repair ‐                        2,000         2,000         2,000             2,000               2,000             2,000             2,000             2,000             

‐                        2,000         2,000         2,000             2,000               2,000             2,000             2,000             2,000             

Project Management Software ‐                        170,000     ‐                 170,000        30,000             30,000           30,000           30,000           30,000           
2 ‐ Laptops & Accessories @ $1800 ‐                        3,600         3,600         3,600             1,800               3,600             ‐                      9,000             ‐                       
Desk, Chair & Accessories ‐                        1,400         1,400         1,400             1,400               2,800             ‐                      ‐                      ‐                       

‐                        175,000     5,000         175,000        33,200             36,400           30,000           39,000           30,000           

Total Expenditures 463,326$         967,378$    804,285$   1,063,276$    1,064,875$     1,409,037$    1,441,100$    1,541,253$    1,559,618$   

CAPITAL OUTLAY

4



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$               325,248$   325,248$  331,326$    331,192$     331,340$    331,410$    331,250$    331,119$    

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total Revenues -                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  

Expenditures:

Principal -                 1,135,000  1,135,000 1,085,000   1,105,000    1,140,000   1,175,000   1,220,000   1,255,000   
Interest Expense -                 2,840,821  2,840,821 2,890,963   2,869,263    2,836,113   2,801,913   2,754,913   2,718,313   
Fees -                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Total Debt Service Expenditures (Note 1) -                 3,975,821  3,975,821 3,975,963   3,974,263    3,976,113   3,976,913   3,974,913   3,973,313   

Total Expenditures -                 3,975,821  3,975,821 3,975,963   3,974,263    3,976,113   3,976,913   3,974,913   3,973,313   

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  
  General Fund 325,248     3,981,899  3,981,899 3,975,829   3,974,411    3,976,183   3,976,753   3,974,782   3,973,313   

-                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  
-                 -                 -                -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total Other Financing Sources 325,248     3,981,899  3,981,899 3,975,829   3,974,411    3,976,183   3,976,753   3,974,782   3,973,313   

Ending Fund Balance 325,248$   331,326$  331,326$ 331,192$   331,340$     331,410$   331,250$   331,119$   331,119$   

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by Trustee, Wilmington Trust

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund Senior Lein Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue and Refunding Bonds Series 2013 
Fund Balance Summary

Plan

For Fiscal Year Ending December31, 2014 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

5



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                -$                  -$                  18,894,208$ 13,638,458$ 7,740,750$   -$                  -$                  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    20,050,750   20,050,250   
TxDOT Reimbursements -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    20,050,750   20,050,250   

Expenditures:

Principal -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    12,310,000   12,925,000   
Interest Expense -                    -                  -                    4,613,396     5,255,750     5,897,708     7,740,750     7,740,750     7,125,250     
Fees -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total Debt Service Expenditures (Note 1) -                    -                  -                    4,613,396     5,255,750     5,897,708     7,740,750     20,050,750   20,050,250   

Total Expenditures -                    -                  -                    4,613,396     5,255,750     5,897,708     7,740,750     20,050,750   20,050,250   

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  General Fund (From Bond Proceeds for -                    -                  -                    23,507,604   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
    Capitalized Interest) -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                  -                    23,507,604   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           - -$          18,894,208$ 13,638,458$ 7,740,750$  -$         -$         -$         

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by First Southwest Company

Comment:  The interest on the Bonds will be paid with bond proceeds for capitalized interest through 2018--all of which will be repaid by TxDOT reimbursements over a 10-year period ending 2028.

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds  Series 2015 (SH 365 Segments 1-3 and Segment 4)
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

6



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                -$                  -$                  15,160,500$ 10,107,000$ 5,053,500$   -$                  -$                  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    13,088,500   13,091,750   

Total Revenues -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    13,088,500   13,091,750   

Expenditures:

Principal -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    8,035,000     8,440,000     
Interest Expense -                    -                  -                    4,632,375     5,053,500     5,053,500     5,053,500     5,053,500     4,651,750     
Fees -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total Debt Service Expenditures (Note 1) -                    -                  -                    4,632,375     5,053,500     5,053,500     5,053,500     13,088,500   13,091,750   

Total Expenditures -                    -                  -                    4,632,375     5,053,500     5,053,500     5,053,500     13,088,500   13,091,750   

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  General Fund (From Bond Proceeds for -                    -                  -                    19,792,875   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
    Capitalized Interest) -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                  -                    19,792,875   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           - -$          15,160,500$ 10,107,000$ 5,053,500$  -$         -$         -$         

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by First Southwest Company

Comment:  The interest on the Bonds will be paid with bond proceeds for capitalized interest through 2018--all of which will be repaid by TxDOT reimbursements over a 10-year period ending 2028.

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund   TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds Series 2015 (IBTC)
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

7



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                 -$                 

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

Total Revenues -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

Expenditures:

Principal -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
Interest Expense -                    -                  -                    -                    4,127,000     4,298,000     4,476,000     4,662,000    4,719,000    
Fees -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
  Total Debt Service Expenditures -                    -                  -                    -                    4,127,000     4,298,000     4,476,000     4,662,000    4,719,000    

Total Expenditures -                    -                  -                    -                    4,127,000     4,298,000     4,476,000     4,662,000    4,719,000    

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
  General Fund (From Toll Revenues) -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    3,300,168    4,768,124    
  Inc (Dec) to Principal on Bonds -                    -                  -                    -                    4,127,000     4,298,000     4,476,000     1,361,832    (49,124)        
    (Note 2) -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                  -                    -                    4,127,000     4,298,000     4,476,000     4,662,000    4,719,000    

Ending Fund Balance -$           - -$          -$         -$          -$         -$         -$        -$        

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by First Southwest Company

Comment:  Interest expense from 2016 through 2018 will be accreted in whole to the outstanding principal of the loan.  In 2019 toll revenues will mitigate the amount needed and in 2020 provide
  for all of the accrued interest for that year as well as reduce the principal by $49,124.

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund  SIB Loan
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

8



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                -$                  -$                  21,348,353$ 17,466,834$ 13,585,315$ 9,703,796$   5,822,277$   

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

Total Revenues -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

Expenditures:

Principal -                    -                  -                    2,264,219     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519    3,881,519    
Interest Expense -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
Fees -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
  Total Debt Service Expenditures -                    -                  -                    2,264,219     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519    3,881,519    

Total Expenditures -                    -                  -                    2,264,219     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519     3,881,519    3,881,519    

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
  General Fund (From Bond Proceeds for -                    -                  -                    23,612,572   -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
    Capitalized Interest) -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

-                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                  -                    23,612,572   -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   

Ending Fund Balance -$           - -$          21,348,353$ 17,466,834$ 13,585,315$ 9,703,796$  5,822,277$  1,940,758$  

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by First Southwest Company

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund  Senior Lien Toll Revenue Bonds #1 Series 2015 
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

9



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                -$                  -$                -$                  26,747,419$ 22,632,431$ 18,517,443$ 14,402,455$ 

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Expenditures:

Principal -                    -                  -                    -                  2,057,494     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     
Interest Expense -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Fees -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total Debt Service Expenditures -                    -                  -                    -                  2,057,494     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     

Total Expenditures -                    -                  -                    -                  2,057,494     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     4,114,988     

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
  General Fund (From Bond Proceeds for -                    -                  -                    -                  28,804,913   -                    -                    -                    -                    
    Capitalized Interest) -                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                  -                    -                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                  -                    -                  28,804,913   -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           - -$          -$       26,747,419$ 22,632,431$ 18,517,443$ 14,402,455$ 10,287,467$

Note 1 - Based upon Debt Service Schedule provided by First Southwest Company

Comment -- Although shown as one bond issue, two issues may be executed in order to save on capitalized interest.

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

Debt Service Fund  Senior Lien Toll Revenue Bonds #2 Series 2017 
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

10



Actual Adj. Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                  -$                  3,212,013$    3,864,204$  4,630,041$  5,166,048$  7,042,611$    8,088,286$    

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
Design -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
ROW -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
Construction -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
  Total SH 365 -                    807,069         -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

IBTC
Environmental -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
Design -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
ROW -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
Construction -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
  Total IBTC -                    807,069         -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

Total Expenditures -                    1,614,138      -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
  General Fund -                    1,614,138      3,212,013      652,191         765,837       536,007       1,876,563    1,045,675      506,651         

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    

Total Other Financing Sources -                    1,614,138      3,212,013      652,191         765,837       536,007       1,876,563    1,045,675      506,651         

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          3,212,013$   3,864,204$   4,630,041$  5,166,048$ 7,042,611$ 8,088,286$   8,594,937$   

Plan

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Capital Project Fund - Funded by VRFs
For Fiscal Year Ending December31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

11



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   105,000$  210,000$  315,000$  420,000$  525,000$  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
  Pharr, Edinburg & Weslaco @ $25,000 -                     75,000           50,000           75,000           75,000      75,000      75,000      75,000      75,000      
  San Juan & Alamo @ $15,000 -                     30,000           30,000           30,000           30,000      30,000      30,000      30,000      30,000      
Total Revenues -                     105,000         80,000           105,000         105,000    105,000    105,000    105,000    105,000    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                     -                -                -                -                -                
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
ROW -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

IBTC
Environmental -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
ROW -                     105,000         -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
  Total IBTC -                     105,000         -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

Total Expenditures -                     105,000         -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
  General Fund -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

-                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

Total Other Financing Sources -                     -                     -                     -                     -                -                -                -                -                

Ending Fund Balance -$          -$          80,000$        105,000$      210,000$  315,000$ 420,000$ 525,000$ 630,000$ 

Plan

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Capital Project Fund - Funded by Cities
For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

12



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                  -$                  -$                1,293,144$    1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
  State Grant -                    25,000,000   -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Category 10 -                    1,900,000     1,293,144   5,600,000      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Total Revenues -                    26,900,000   1,293,144   5,600,000      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Design -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
ROW -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Construction -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Total SH 365 -                    1,900,000     -                  5,600,000      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

IBTC
Environmental -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Design -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
ROW -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Construction -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Total IBTC -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

I 68
Environmental -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Design -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
ROW -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Construction -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Total I 68 -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total Expenditures -                    1,900,000     -                  5,600,000      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers-In from Other Funds -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
  General Fund -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

-                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
-                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Ending Fund Balance -$          25,000,000$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$   1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$ 1,293,144$

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Capital Project Fund - Funded by State Grants
For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

13



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   48,518,464$  51,246,410$  13,651,000$  1,718,000$    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest -                     110,155         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues -                     110,155         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
ROW -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     37,595,410    11,933,000    1,718,000      -                     -                     -                     -                     

IBTC
Environmental -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
ROW -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Expenditures 705,461         32,873,509    37,595,410    11,933,000    1,718,000      -                     -                     -                     -                     

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
VRF 13 Bond Construction Fund Proceeds 51,951,871    -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 51,951,871    -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Ending Fund Balance 51,246,410$  15,755,110$ 13,651,000$ 1,718,000$   -$           -$          -$          -$          -$          

Plan

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Bond Construction Fund - Senior Lein VRF Revenue & Refunding Bonds Series 2013 
For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

14



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                   99,549,196$       94,494,196$       80,740,196$       -$                      -$                   

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Interest -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     

Total Revenues -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Design -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
ROW -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Construction -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                          45,704,000    5,055,000           13,754,000         80,740,196         -                        -                     

IBTC
Environmental -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Design -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
ROW -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Construction -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                          -                     -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                          45,704,000    5,055,000           13,754,000         80,740,196         -                        -                     

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
TxDOT Bond Construction Fund Proceeds -                     -                     -                          145,253,196  -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                          145,253,196  -                          -                          -                          -                        -                     

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          -$               99,549,196$ 94,494,196$      80,740,196$      -$               -$             -$          

Total 19,616,000$       22,225,000$  49,634,000$       22,047,000$       22,547,000$       136,069,000$   
SH 365 -                      -                 -                      22,017,000         22,547,000         44,564,000       
IBTC 19,616,000$       22,225,000$  49,634,000$       30,000$              -$                    91,505,000$     

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Bond Construction Fund  TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds Series 2015 (SH 365 Segments 1-4)
Fund Balance Summary

Plan

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

15



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   49,663,496$    29,496$         -$                  -$                    -$                  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Interest -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    

Total Revenues -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    

IBTC
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Design -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                     41,841,000    49,634,000      29,496           -                    -                      -                    

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                     41,841,000    49,634,000      29,496           -                    -                      -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
TxDOT Bond Construction Fund Proceeds -                     -                     -                     91,504,496    -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                     91,504,496    -                      -                    -                    -                      -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          -$          49,663,496$ 29,496$           -$         -$         -$           -$         

Total 19,616,000$   22,225,000$  49,634,000$    22,047,000$  22,547,000$  136,069,000$  
SH 365 -                 -                 -                  22,017,000    22,547,000    44,564,000      
IBTC 19,616,000$   22,225,000$  49,634,000$    30,000$         -$              91,505,000$    

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Bond Construction Fund  TxDOT Reimbursement Bonds  Series 2015 (IBTC)
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

16



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                   -$                    72,295,282$  3,180,282$    500,000$       500,000$       

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Interest -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                    -                     27,646,000      69,115,000    2,680,282      -                    -                    

IBTC
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                    -                     -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                    -                     27,646,000      69,115,000    2,680,282      -                    -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
SIB Bond Construction Fund Proceeds -                     -                     -                    -                     99,941,282      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                    -                     99,941,282      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          -$         -$          72,295,282$   3,180,282$   500,000$      500,000$      500,000$      

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET
Bond Construction Fund - SIB Loan

Fund Balance Summary

Plan

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

17



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                    29,203,429$    -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Interest -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

IBTC
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                    20,738,000      29,203,429      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                    20,738,000      29,203,429      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
Sr Lien Rev Bonds -                     -                     -                    49,941,429      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                    49,941,429      I -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          -$         29,203,429$   -$            -$         -$         -$         -$         

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Bond Construction Fund  Senior Lien Toll Revenue Bonds #1 Series 2015 
Fund Balance Summary

Plan

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

18



Actual Budget Estimated Budget
2013 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                    -$                    30,402,143$  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Interest -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Revenues -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Expenditures:

SH 365
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total SH 365 -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    

IBTC
Environmental -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Design -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
ROW -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Construction -                     -                     -                    -                      -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
  Total IBTC -                     -                     -                    -                      21,855,000      30,402,143    -                    -                    -                    

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                    -                      21,855,000      30,402,143    -                    -                    -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer
Sr Lien Rev Bonds -                     -                     -                    -                      52,257,143      -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                    -                      52,257,143      -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Fund Balance -$           -$          -$         -$           30,402,143$   -$         -$         -$         -$         

Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS BUDGET

Bond Construcction Fund  Senior Lien Toll Revenue Bonds #2 Series 2017 
Fund Balance Summary

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

Plan

19



Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS EXPENDITURE BUDGET SUMMARY
All Capital Projects Funds
(in Thousand $s)
For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2015 and Plan for the Succeeding Five (5) Years

SOURCES:

CPF - VRFs Fund -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             
CPF - Cities -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
CPF - State Grants -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Bond Construction Funds -               -               -               5,600       -               5,600       -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
  VRFs Series 2013 40,321     -               40,321     -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
  TxDOT Reimb Bonds (Seg 1-4) -               -               -               145,254   -               145,254   -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
  TxDOT Reimb Bonds (IBTC) -               -               -               -               91,504     91,504     -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
  SIB Loan -               -               -               -               -               -               99,441     -               99,441     -               -               -               -               
  Toll Revenue Bonds #1 -               -               -               -               49,941     49,941     -               52,257     52,257     -               -               -               -               
  Toll Revenue Bonds #2 -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

  TOTAL SOURCES 40,321$   -$             40,321$   150,854$ 141,445$ 292,299$ 99,441$   52,257$   151,698$ -$             -$             -$             -$             

SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365

USE (EXPENDITURES):

CPF - VRFs Fund -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             

CPF - Cities -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           

CPF - State Grants -           -           -           5,600       -           5,600       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           

Bond Construction Funds
  VRFs Series 2013 26,670     -           26,670     11,933     -           11,933     1,718       -           1,718       -           -           -           -           

  TxDOT Reimb Bonds (Seg 1-4) -           -           -           45,704     -           45,704     5,055       -           5,055       13,754     -           13,754     80,740     

  TxDOT Reimb Bonds (IBTC) -           -           -           -           41,841     41,841     -           49,634     49,634     -           30            30            -           

  SIB Loan -           -           -           -           -           -           27,646     -           27,646     69,115     -           69,115     2,680       

  Toll Revenue Bonds #1 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           20,738     20,738     -           29,203     29,203     -           

  Toll Revenue Bonds #2 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           21,855     21,855     -           30,402     30,402     -           

  TOTAL USES (EXPENDITURES): 26,670$   -$     26,670$   63,237$   41,841$   105,078$ 34,419$   92,227$   126,646$ 82,869$   59,635$   142,504$ 83,420$   

Comment:  Sources and Uses agree to Strategic Plan Prepared September 2014

Remaining Issues:
CPF - VRFs Fund Balance @ 2020 8,595$     
CPF - Cities Fund Balance @2020 630          
CPF - State Grant Fund Balance @ 2020 1,293       
BCF - SIB Loan Fund Balance @ 2020 500          

11,018$   
Rep. Martinez Grant - Not Located 25,000     
  Total 36,018$   

20172014 2015 2016

20



CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS EXPENDITURE BUDGET SUMMARY -- Cont'd

-$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                -$                -$                
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              -              -                  
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              -              -                  
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               5,600           -              5,600          
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               40,321         -              40,321        
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               145,254       -              145,254      
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              91,504        91,504        
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               99,941         -              99,941        
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              102,198      102,198      
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              -              -                  

-$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             291,116$     193,702$    484,818$    

IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total SH 365 IBTC Total

-$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                -$                -$                

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -              

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           5,600           -              5,600          

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           40,321         -              40,321        

-           80,740     -           -           -           -           -           -           145,253       -              145,253      

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              91,505        91,505        

-           2,680       -           -           -           -           -           -           99,441         -              99,441        

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              49,941        49,941        

-           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              52,257        52,257        

-$     83,420$   -$     -$     -$     -$     -$     -$     290,615$     193,703$    484,318$    

2018 2019 2020 Total

21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 3B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  3B                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          12/09/14                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       12/15/14  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
5. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2014 -112 – APPROVAL OF RANKING FOR AUDITING   

SERVICES FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AND   
AUTHORIZATION FOR STAFF TO NEGOTIATE FEES AND EXECUTE AN ENGAGENENT  
LETTER             

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of the ranking for Auditing Services and authorization for staff to negotiate fees and  

execute an engagement letter.          
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government, Texas Government Code, Texas   

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                  
 
4. Budgeted:        X   Yes           No          N/A   
   
1. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2014 - 112 – Approval of ranking for  

Auditing Services and authorization for staff to negotiate fees and execute an engagement 
letter.                    
 

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None  
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X  None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:    X  Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved         None 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Memorandum 
To: Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: December 9, 2014 

Re: Approval of ranking for Auditing Services   

Background 
Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 26, Subchapter G, §26.62 requires the HCRMA to have an 
annual financial and compliance audit of its books and records to be conducted by an independent certified public 
accountant in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.  Also, the HCRMA bylaws requires the HCRMA 
to submit an annual audit conducted by an independent certified public accountant in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards to Texas Department of Transportation, the County of Hidalgo, and the City of McAllen 
within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of the fiscal year.  
 
On September 24, 2014, the Board of Directors approved Resolution 2014-93 – Authorization to Solicit Requests for 
Qualifications to provide Audit Services for the HCRMA and on November 22, 2014, the Finance Committee was 
appointed to rate, rank and recommend a shortlist to the Board of Directors of respondents to the Request for 
Qualification for Audit Services.   
 
On December 4, 2014, the Finance Committee accepted staff’s rating and ranking of firms that submitted Statement 
of Qualifications and the short list of firms that will perform interviews for the Board of Directors for further 
consideration. 
 
Goal 
As directed by the Board of Directors, the Finance Committee recommend a short list of firms for interview. As a 
result of the formal interviews, staff is requesting that the Board of Directors rank and select firms to negotiate for 
Auditing Services.  
 
A ranking matrix score sheet is attached for each Board member to rank the Auditing Service firm. The individual 
score sheets will be tallied together to determine the final ranking. 

 
Options 
The Board of Directors could chose to not select firms and defer action to a future agenda. 
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2014-112– Approval of ranking for Auditing Services is 
recommended as determined by the Board of Directors. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 

 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2014 – 112 
 

APPROVAL OF RANKING FOR AUDITING SERVICES FOR THE 
HIDALGO COUNT REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AND 

AUTHORIZATION FOR STAFF TO NEGOTIATE FEES AND 
EXECUTE AN ENGAGEMENT LETTER 

 
THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 15th day of December, 2014, by the Board of 
Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 

 WHEREAS, on April 21, 2005, Hidalgo County (the “County”) petitioned 
the Texas Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) for authorization to create the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”) pursuant to the provisions 
of the Texas Transportation Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission authorized the creation of the Authority on 
November 17, 2005; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority now operates pursuant to, among other statutory 
provisions, Chapters 370 and 502, Texas Transportation Code, and the corresponding 
Commission regulations, policies and procedures, as amended from time to time 
(collectively, the “Authorizing Law”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority is required by Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, 
Part 1, Chapter 26, Subchapter G, §26.62 to have an annual financial and compliance 
audit of its books and records to be conducted by an independent certified public 
accountant in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards ; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority is required by Section 37(d) of its bylaws to submit an 
annual audit conducted by an independent certified public accountant in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards to the Hidalgo County and the City of McAllen 
within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of the fiscal year; and  

WHEREAS, on September 24, 2014 the Authority approved Resolution 2014-93, 
which approved the solicitation of Requests for Qualifications to provide Auditing 
Services to the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, on November 7, 2014, the Authority received four (4) responses to 
the request for Statement of Qualifications for Auditing Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2014, the Finance Committee was appointed to 

rate, rank and recommend a shortlist to the Board of Directors of respondents to the 
Request for Qualification for Auditing Services; and  



WHEREAS, the Finance Committee recommended that the Board of Directors 
accept the short list and interview Padgett Stratemann, Burton McCumber & Cortez; and 
PMB Helin Donovan; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors will rate and rank the short list; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors ranked _____________________ the top firm 
and determined it is necessary to negotiate a fee and execute an engagement letter;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board approves the ranking and selects the top firm of 

___________________for Auditing Services for the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority, hereto attached as Exhibit A. 

 
Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to negotiate fees and execute 

an engagement letter with the selected firm.  
 

***** 



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 15th day of 
December, 2014, at which meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
      Rance G. Sweeten, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
             
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

FINAL RANKING FOR AUDITING SERVICES  



 

 

FINAL RANKING FOR AUDITING SERVICES 

2014 

 
Firms are ranked on a twenty-five (25) point scale. The firm with the highest total score will be ranked first. 

 

 

            RATER             

         1  2  3  4  5  6  7 Total   Ranking 

Padgett Stratemann Co.                                                 

Burton McCumber & Cortez LLP                                       ___ 

PMB Helin Donovan                                          ___      

      


	Notice & Agenda - December 15, 2014.
	Workshop Item 1 - Review of Proposed FY 2015 O&M and Capital Budget.

	Workshop Item 2 - Review of Monthly Financial Report.
	Workshop Item 3 - Review of PDA with TxDOT for SH 365.
	Workshop Item 4 - Interview of Short List for Auditing Services.
	Item 2A - Approval of Minutes for November 20, 2014.
	Item 2B - Expense Report from November 12 to December 5, 2014.
	Item 2C - Approval of Financial Report for November 2014.
	Item 2D - Resolution 2014-113 - Sup2 to WA13 Dannenbaum.
	Item 2E - Resolution 2014-114 - Sup1 to WA16 Dannenbaum.
	Item 2F - Resolution 2014-115 - Sup1 to WA18 Dannenbaum.
	Item 2G - Resolution 2014-116 - Sup1 to WA1 R. Gutierrez Surveying IBTC.
	Item 2H - Resolution 2014-117 - Sup1 to PSA R. Gutierrez Surveying IBTC.
	Item 2I - Resolution 2014-118 - Sup1 to WA1 QHA Surveying IBTC.

	Item 2J - Resolution 2014-119 - Sup1 to PSA QHA Surveying IBTC.

	Item 2K - Resolution 2014-120 - Sup1 to WA1 M&H Surveying IBTC.
	Item 2L - Reolution 2014-121 - Sup1 to PSA M&H Surveying IBTC.
	Item 3A - Adoption of FY 2015 O&M and Capital Budget.
	Item 3B - Approval of ranking and authorization to negotiate for Audit Services.

